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Our Purpose
Serving the Public Interest.

Our Mission
To enable the Auditor General to meet Parliament’s need for independent and 
impartial information regarding public sector accountability and performance.

Who We Are
We are an audit office of around 100 staff responsible to the Western 
Australian Auditor General for auditing the Western Australian public sector.

Our Ethos
Our ethos is that we seek to be recognised as: Independent, Credible, and 
Innovative. 

Our Operating Environment
The Western Australian public sector comprises some 220 government 
departments, statutory authorities and other bodies, with agencies varying in 
size from those employing a few people to those employing many thousands. 
Together these agencies employ about 115 000 people and generate a 
combined revenue and expenditure in excess of $33 billion annually in 
providing a range of services to the citizens of Western Australia.

Our Clients 
Our clients are the Parliament, Western Australian public sector agencies, 
and ultimately the people of Western Australia. In its widest context the Office 
serves the public interest – since the Auditor General is a key provider of 
independent and impartial information on public sector accountability and 
performance to the Parliament. He has a responsibility to the community as its 
‘watchdog’.

The Auditor General 
The Auditor General scrutinises the public sector to see there has not been 
waste of taxpayers’ resources and that government agencies deliver services 
in an equitable, efficient and effective manner to the benefit of all Western 
Australians.

The Auditor General is thereby an ‘ally of the People and Parliament’. He must 
act, and be seen to be acting, independently in carrying out all his powers 
and duties. This independence is the cornerstone of public sector audit, and 
therefore to properly discharge his responsibilities the Auditor General must be 
free from pressure, influence or interference from any source that may erode 

that independence.

Serving the Public Interest
Independent and forthright reports 

tabled in Parliament by the Auditor 

General assist Parliamentarians and the 

public to have a better understanding 

of the performance of public sector 

agencies. Together with advice 

provided to agencies, they assist agency 

management to improve the cost 

effectiveness and responsiveness of their 

services. The information provided by 

the Auditor General also reassures the 

public that an independent watchdog is 

serving the public interest. Collectively, 

these commitments contribute to 

improving community confidence in the 

public sector. 

Introducing the
In its widest context the Office 

serves the public interest 

– since the Auditor General is 

a key provider of independent 

and impartial information on 

public sector accountability and 

performance to the Parliament. 

He has a responsibility to the 

community as its 'watchdog'.
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This Report describes the functions 
and operations of the Office of 
the Auditor General and presents 
the audited financial statements 
and performance indicators for 
the Office for the year ended June 
30, 2004. It is not a report on the 
results of audits conducted, as this 
information is tabled in Parliament 
separately.

When reading this Report 
readers should be aware that the 
OUTCOME we seek is an informed 
Parliament on public sector 
accountability and performance.

This OUTCOME is achieved through 
our OUTPUT of Performance 
Auditing.

Performance Auditing comprises:

� Financial Attest Audits

� Performance Indicator Audits

� Controls and Compliance   
 Examinations

� Performance Examinations

These audits and examinations 
result in Reports to Parliament 
that identify Matters of 
Significance which ultimately 
generates our desired OUTCOME.

The Report is available in PDF and HTML format 

on the Office’s website www.audit.wa.gov.au

Contents
Annual Report

THIS REPORT

The report has been coordinated, designed and produced entirely in-house 
utilising the Office’s existing resources.
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IMPROVING PUBLIC SECTOR PERFORMANCE
� Tabled in Parliament 12 Reports identifying 112 Matters of 

Significance.

� Completed 222 Financial Statement Audits and 160 
Performance Indicator Audits.

� Completed 11 Controls, Compliance and Accountability 
Examinations across 27 public sector agencies.

� Completed and reported to Parliament seven Performance 
Examinations and two Follow-up Examinations.

� Audits of agencies with June 30 balance dates, collectively 
covering assets of $55.3 billion comprising approximately 75 
per cent of the State's assets, were completed by September 30, 
2003.

� Total audit program completed within statutory deadlines.

IMPROVING ORGANISATIONAL PERFORMANCE
� Quality Assurance Reviews completed for Attest Audits, Controls, 

Compliance and Accountability Examinations and Performance 
Examinations.

� Enhanced Performance Examination training package developed 
for staff.

� Successful submission to Government on the long-term 
resourcing needs of the Office.

� 2002-03 Annual Report wins WS Lonnie Cup for Excellence in 
Annual Reporting, a Gold Award for best Annual Report in the 
general Government sector and a Silver Award in the national 
Australasian Annual Reporting Awards.

� 185 enquiries and complaints promptly responded to.

2003-04
Highlights

OAG auditors, such as Linda Clegg, work 
across the public sector to provide Parliament 
with opinions on the integrity of public sector 
agency financial statements, performance 
indicators and related controls.

Winning Team: Communications Manager, 
Peter Villiers and Publishing Officer, Dana 
Merdzan with the OAG's awards for 
excellence in annual reporting.
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OVERVIEW
Auditor General’s

Our Year in Review
The 2003-04 year has been one of consolidation for the Office, with structural 

reform spearheading our response to the multiple challenges of an ever-evolving 

public sector and an increasingly demanding Parliament and public.

To maintain the effectiveness, quality and currency of the services provided to 

Parliament and the public sector, the Office had to become more strategic in its 

outlook, more future focused and alert to the shifts and changes in its operating 

environment. Equally, the pivotal products of the Office, reports to Parliament, 

needed to identify a greater breadth and depth of issues. More effective ways of 

communicating results and outcomes had to be found to accommodate emerging 

needs and the ever-changing public sector environment.

Equally, as an independent Office reporting on the regularity, efficiency and 

effectiveness of the public sector, it was important that we operated and were 

seen to operate in a cost effective and clearly accountable manner. This was an 

important element of being able to demonstrate our integrity and ensure the quality 

of our work. 

Thus it was that we again fine-tuned our organisational framework, reducing the 

hierarchical structure within the Office, and more clearly defining accountabilities 

to generate improved organisational performance.

The year was one of 

consolidation, with the 

Office restructured to better 

meet the challenges of an 

evolving public sector and 

a demanding Parliament 

and public ...

... we needed to operate, 

and to be seen to operate, 

in a cost-effective and 

clearly accountable 

manner that demonstrated 

our integrity and ensured 

the quality of our work.
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Meeting the Challenges
Against this background, if asked then to sum up what kind of year 2003-04 was 

for the Office it would be simplistic for me to say ‘successful’ and follow this with 

a list of examples to support such a basic assessment. After all, I am no different 

to other CEOs being proud of my organisation and the achievements of my staff. 

And, ultimately, the numbers do show it has been a solid year. At the end of the 

day, when reviewing the results of our core business operations, we find that tabled 

in Parliament were 12 reports (in terms of reports tabled on a par with our best 

results in the past 10 years) that identified 112 Matters of Significance (in terms of 

the significance of the issues detailed many had considerable public impact and 

wide coverage).

However, success, as we all know is relative. An honest, effective process of 

reflection and review requires not only we look at the end result, but also how 

we got there. In that context things were not as clear cut. The journey was not 

without its stresses and trials; sometimes we ‘did it tough’. In striving for optimal 

performance, we as an organisation needed to better focus on a consistency of 

effort, understanding that what is required is evenness of performance across all 

Divisions, with results delivered simultaneously whilst balancing cost, time and 

quality. If we can achieve this, it will in future enable us to be more purposeful in 

what we do, move from the distractions of retrieval to focus on the proactive, and 

ultimately do far more independently of the demands and needs of our clients and 

stakeholders.

However, that we ultimately attained our organisational goals is a credit to all staff 

and the effort and hard work they put in. They ensured that Western Australian 

taxpayers received good value for the $10.8 million expended by the Office. 

At the end of the day, collectively some 100 staff were able to undertake the 

financial attest and performance indicator audit of some 220 agencies (with an 

estimated revenue plus expenditure of around $33 billion), whilst at the same 

time conducting seven wide-ranging performance examinations, two follow-up 

examinations, and eleven controls, compliance and accountability examinations 

across the public sector. As previously stated, these collectively identified 112 

matters of significance in 12 reports to Parliament. I salute every one of my staff for 

making this happen. And also for recognising that we could have done it better, 

and more importantly putting in place measures to ensure that in the future we do. 

Thus, beyond being a successful year, it was also a promising year.

AUDITOR GENERAL’S OVERVIEW ... continued

The numbers show that it 

has been a solid year of 

achievement ...

... 12 reports identifying 

112 Matters of Significance 

were tabled.

There were, however, 

problems ... stresses and 

trials...

... we need to focus on 

consistency of effort, 

balancing cost, time and 

quality.

Ultimately, all 

organisational goals were 

attained, but we recognise 

we could have done it 

better, and will so do in the 

future.
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Resourcing and Operations
In implementing the structural reform of the Office and seeking to lift 

organisational performance, it was gratifying that Government too recognised 

the challenges confronting us. Our budget submission for the coming year, that 

included a request for additional funding, was accepted by the Government. This 

has meant a boost to our financial resources of some $800 000 in 2004-05.

This will provide the Office with the resources and necessary flexibility to address 

the increased expectations of the role of external audit, strengthen and streamline 

the assurance function, enable reporting of additional major performance 

examinations, and very importantly assist in the rebuilding of staff expertise.

Specific benefits that are expected to arise from the additional resources include:

� Re-establishing the level of assurance on financial statements, performance 

indicators, and controls so that it is adequate to meet contemporary 

expectations and emerging challenges.

� Making an appropriate contribution to the adoption by the public sector of 

International Financial Reporting Standards and to audit their application.

� Re-engineering the audit process to accommodate the earlier tabling of annual 

reports by public sector agencies.

� Maintaining the provision of independent information through at least six 

stand-alone reports per year and enabling coverage of high public interest 

issues such as major infrastructure projects, innovative funding arrangements, 

and machinery of government reforms, in line with stakeholder expectations.

� Enabling a reasonable and defensible approach to the newly legislated 

requirement to investigate Public Interest Disclosures and other complaints and 

queries.

Making a Difference
The decisions of government and public sector agencies are often based on a 

number of interacting factors and information from a variety of sources, hence it is 

not always easy to measure the direct impact of our operations. 

However, during 2003-04 it was clear from Parliamentary, agency and public 

reaction to our reports, that we have made, and are making, a difference to 

improving accountability across the public sector, to the way agencies are 

managed and operate, to the way issues of public interest are addressed, and 

finally to the way the public perceives the operations of the public sector at large. 

Evidence of this can be found in the gravity with which Ministers treat the findings 

contained in our reports and in the way they direct agencies to expeditiously ‘get 

Government recognised 

the challenges for the 

Office, boosting funding 

by $800 000 ...

... this will give the 

Office the flexibility and 

resources to strengthen 

the assurance function, 

enable additional major 

Performance Examinations 

and rebuild staff expertise.

It was clear from 

stakeholder reaction to our 

reports that we are making 

a difference to improving 

public sector accountability 

and the way agencies are 

managed ...
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things fixed’. Further, the Public Accounts Committee initiative to require a report 

within 12 months from agencies subject to Performance Examination is another 

clear signal that issues raised in reports should be promptly addressed. 

As further evidence, it is highly apparent from audits and our follow-up 

examinations that agencies too respond positively to the findings in our reports, 

giving high priority to implementing the recommendations.

Undoubtedly our reports can have broad reach and impact, acting as a catalyst 

for new initiatives or generating public discussion. At a specific level I would cite as 

prime examples the impact of just three reports tabled in 2003-04.

The report on the long-term business sustainability of Rottnest Island prompted the 

formation of a Ministerial Taskforce to establish a clear plan for solving the Island’s 

current problems. Parliament is now significantly better informed on the financial, 

social and environmental issues facing Rottnest and options for moving the Island 

forward. The Report has raised the profile and urgency of Rottnest’s position 

and encouraged Parliament, and the wider community, to engage in a positive 

discussion of how a sustainable future for Rottnest can be achieved. 

Government response to the report Patients Waiting: Access to Elective Surgery 

in WA included the allocation of $10 million to reduce the waiting list, giving an 

undertaking that anyone waiting more than 500 days would have an operation by 

July 2004, removing cosmetic surgery from the waitlist and making a commitment 

to use non-teaching hospitals to reduce waitlists.

Developing the State: The Management of State Agreements highlighted the 

difficulty experienced in removing royalty concessions and is resulting in renewed 

efforts to remove over $40 million per year in iron ore royalty concessions. 

Serving the Parliament
The breadth and depth of our reporting in 2003-04 ensured that Parliament was 

given a comprehensive and detailed picture of public sector performance on which 

to base its resourcing decisions.

During the year, Parliament was kept abreast of a wide spectrum of public sector 

accountability issues via the tabling of the aforementioned reports to Parliament 

that identified 112 matters of significance. The Public Accounts Committee 

was provided with briefings on these reports, complemented by briefings for 

Parliamentarians after the tabling of each report. 

AUDITOR GENERAL’S OVERVIEW ... continued

... this is evidenced by the 

positive way Government 

Ministers, the Public 

Accounts Committee and 

agency management 

react to the findings and 

recommendations in our 

reports.

Three reports especially 

have had a considerable 

impact – Turning the Tide: 

The Business Sustainability 

of the Rottnest Island 

Authority, Patients Waiting: 

Access to Elective Surgery 

in Western Australia, and 

Developing the State: The 

Management of State 

Agreement Acts.

Parliament was given a 

comprehensive picture of 

public sector performance 

on which to base its 

resourcing decisions.
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Also during the year the Office responded to 185 formal enquiries and complaints 

by MPs and the general public about the administration and performance of 

the public sector. Seventy nine per cent of those enquiries and complaints were 

answered within 10 days of receipt.

Parliamentary Census
Just how successful we are in meeting the needs of Parliament is found in the 

results of our Census of Members of Parliament. In 2001 we began working 

towards a single outcome - an informed Parliament on public sector accountability 

and performance. This outcome has been measured in the last three censuses and 

has ranged from an exceptionally high ‘spike’ of 84 per cent in 2002 to the more 

circumspect 66 per cent of this year. That the figure is the same as last year gives 

some degree of satisfaction in that we have not regressed. However, given that we 

set an exacting target of 85 per cent to both stretch and challenge us, it is also of 

some concern.

Of equal concern is the continuing fall in the percentage of Members who feel that 

our reports deal with matters of significance to Parliament. The drop to 76 per cent 

(down from 83 per cent last year and 94 per cent in 2002) is around 10 per cent 

below a demanding target and our poorest result for five years.

These results, whilst perhaps understandable in the context of the Parliamentary 

cycle, the scope and timing of our 2003-04 reporting, and the nature of statistics, 

are perplexing and must be, and will be, addressed. The Office has as a matter of 

urgency committed to an even closer liaison with Parliament and individual MPs to 

determine the reasons for their perceptions and what needs to be done. 

On the positive side 83 per cent of Members felt that the services of the Office 

were useful to Parliament, recovering the ground lost in 2003 (76 per cent), 

satisfaction with services was marginally (but consistently) up from 2003, and 

the perceived importance of audit opinions was higher. Further, the perceived 

effectiveness of the Office in increasing public sector accountability (83 per cent) 

and confidence in the public sector (70 per cent) were both higher than last year. 

Satisfaction too can be derived from the fact that a number of areas identified in 

our 2003 Parliamentary Census as warranting attention did not re-emerge and 

it is possible the measures taken by the Office to address these issues have been 

effective.

I would also like to express my appreciation to all Members of Parliament, 

particularly the Public Accounts Committee of the Legislative Assembly, for their 

confidence in, and ongoing support of, the work of my Office during the year. 

Parliament is my Office’s primary client and in my broader role of serving the 

public interest as an ‘ally of the people and Parliament’, I have found their input 

and assistance of great value.

The Parliamentary Census 

revealed mixed results...

... we fell short of some 

exacting targets in a 

number of areas ...

... and whilst the results 

are perplexing, new 

strategies and approaches 

will be developed to 

address the concerns.

Other results were 

highly positive and an 

improvement on last year 

...

... and areas of concern in 

2003 did not re-emerge.
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The Public Sector
In reviewing the findings and matters raised in my reports to Parliament during 

2003-2004, I can assure Parliament and the Western Australian public that overall 

the public sector continues to make steady progress in terms of both accountability 

and performance. 

In commending public sector managers on this progress, I would remind them that 

whilst the issues raised in my reports are significant and obviously need remedying 

in a timely manner, more importantly, they convey underlying lessons that warrant 

close consideration. Public sector managers in the current operating environment 

need to better understand the risks entailed in their judgements and actions. 

Purposeful management by agencies is essential for the efficient and effective 

delivery of services. Decisions need to be made on an informed basis to the 

betterment of the public they serve. Hence effort must be directed to ensuring the 

achievement of desired results with processes playing a supportive role.

At this juncture I would like to thank the many public sector employees my staff 

worked with during the year. Whilst it is true that my reports in the main tend to 

focus on the problems in the public sector, it is also true that, wherever our work 

leads us, we find many talented and dedicated individuals. I would like to take 

this opportunity to acknowledge their cooperation and commitment to good 

government.

Overall, it was evident from the results of audits and examinations undertaken that 

the public sector has embraced recent changes and improved its performance in 

discharging its current financial management responsibilities. However, a number 

of areas of concern were identified.

Financial Controls
Failure to maintain basic financial controls saw seven qualified opinions issued 

during the 2003 audit cycle (compared with 18 in 2002). Control weaknesses 

related to asset management, reconciliation of accounts and revenue collection. 

In addition to leaving the public sector exposed to the risk of mistake, fraud and 

corruption, such control weaknesses consumed additional agency and audit 

resources.

AUDITOR GENERAL’S OVERVIEW ... continued

The public sector overall 

made steady progress in 

terms of accountability and 

performance ...

... however, more 

purposeful management is 

essential for efficient and 

effective service delivery ...

... with effort focused 

on achieving results and 

process a secondary 

consideration.

It was clear the public 

sector has embraced recent 

reforms and improved its 

performance in financial 

management ...

... some concerns though 

remain ...

... such as control 

weaknesses which expose 

the public sector to the 

risk of mistake, fraud and 

corruption.
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Timeliness and Quality of Reporting
Early submission of good quality financial statements and performance indicators, 

supported by reliable working papers and ensuring the availability of key staff during 

the audit process, led to 16 agencies being highlighted as better practice agencies 

for the timeliness and quality of their 2002-03 financial statements and performance 

indicators. 

The reporting year also saw a significant decrease in the late submission of financial 

statements and performance indicator reports by public sector entities, with only 10 

per cent not meeting statutory deadlines, down from 33 per cent in the preceding 

year. The decrease was in all categories, with 10 per cent of departments submitting 

their reports late (compared with 20 per cent in the 2002 audit cycle), 10 per cent 

of statutory authorities (14 per cent in 2002) and all six of the amalgamated health 

sector agencies submitting by the statutory date (down from 95 per cent of 44 

agencies in 2002).

Good corporate governance is built on getting the fundamentals, such as compliance 

with statutory accountability obligations, right. All agencies should strive to improve 

and benefit from timely and precise management reporting throughout the year as 

well as at year end.

Performance Indicators
Overall, general feedback and anecdotal information continues to suggest that for 

many agencies performance indicators are simply being produced to comply with the 

legislation, with minimal benefit, use or focus arising from them.

Two agencies received qualifications as they did not have data for their indicator/s. 

Five health sector agencies’ key effectiveness indicators for Outcome 3 'Improvement 

in the quality of life of people with chronic illness or disability' were qualified as they 

were not key measures of the outcome. In addition, the Department of Health’s 

key efficiency indicators were qualified as they did not include approximately $185 

million of the Department’s total expenditure of $563 million.

Computer Viruses
Computer viruses are becoming increasingly prevalent and sophisticated in their 

capacity to exploit system vulnerabilities. In 2003 two viruses, ‘MS Blaster’ and 

‘Nachi’, caused widespread disruption across the world, including to Western 

Australian Government agencies. An examination found that, by and large, most 

agencies are ill prepared to prevent or respond to virus attacks. This is a major 

concern for the State given the heavy reliance on computer systems for service 

provision and communication and the potential for millions of dollars in costs arising 

from virus infections.

Sixteen agencies were 

commended for the quality 

and timeliness of their 

reporting ...

... and there was a 

significant decrease in 

the late submission of 

financial statements and 

performance indicators.

Unfortunately, many 

agencies' performance 

indicators are being 

produced to simply comply 

with the legislation, with 

minimal benefit or use 

arising from them.

Many agencies are ill-

prepared to respond to, 

or prevent, computer 

virus attacks ... this being 

a major concern for the 

State.
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Outlook
An Evolving Public Sector 
The public sector is in a continuous state of flux. Structural, functional, financial 

and managerial changes occur on a regular basis. Just as one set of changes 

are being implemented, sometimes even while the process is still underway, more 

changes are introduced.

Restructuring, particularly structural and financial restructuring, has a significant 

effect on public sector audit. Given demographic trends (such as growth in, and 

aging of, the general population) and the development of new opportunities 

(economic growth and advances in technology) and risks (new threats such as 

terrorism) requiring action at government level, this rate of change will not abate 

but is likely to grow, greatly increasing the complexity of the audit task.

Restructuring creates transitional issues for audit. In the wake of the Machinery of 

Government round of restructuring last year, I noted a significant increase in the 

number of agencies unable to meet FAAA statutory reporting deadlines, problems 

with basic financial housekeeping and in some cases difficulty in maintaining 

multiple independent human resources and financial systems for some time after 

agency amalgamation. 

Even when the total number of audit entities is cut, those remaining generally 

continue to deliver equivalent programs and services and to more clients than ever 

before. Similarly, the introduction of shared corporate service centres will produce 

several further years of change and it is probable that the long-term net effect 

will not be a reduction in audit workload, savings in some aspects being offset 

by additional work in others. In particular, this next phase of public sector reform 

involves new and extended communication and accountability chains as well as 

major changes to people and systems.

Audit Stakeholder Roles, Responsibilities and 
Expectations 
The demand for independent and impartial information regarding accountability 

and performance in the Western Australian public sector is increasing as the public 

sector grows in size, reach, transparency and cost to the community, and as new 

stakeholders emerge within the democratic process. 

As the public sector grows so too does the community’s concern about 

accountability. Equally, as education standards rise so does the community’s ability 

and desire to become more directly involved in the political process. These factors 

increase community and Parliamentary demand for independent and impartial 

information and assurance regarding accountability and performance in the WA 

public sector. Hence, the pressure on my Office has escalated and is associated 

with this increasing awareness and concern about ongoing change. 

AUDITOR GENERAL’S OVERVIEW ... continued

The public sector continues 

to constantly change ...

... this restructuring had a 

significant effect on public 

sector audit ...

... and also created 

financial management 

problems for agencies.

The reforms will not result 

in a reduction in audit 

workload.

The demand for 

independent and impartial 

information on public 

sector accountability and 

performance continues 

to grow ... increasing the 

expectations on the work 

of the Office.
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Corporate Governance 
Good corporate governance requirements are increasing rapidly, not only 

in relation to financial and economic performance but also in relation to 

environmental and social performance – the sustainability dimension to public 

sector operations.

Those with a direct and immediate effect on my Office include Public Interest 

Disclosures, privacy considerations, new funding arrangements for NFPOs, and 

tighter reporting deadlines. 

In addition, the adoption of the International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS) 

in 2004-05 has implications for public sector entities and therefore for public 

sector audit. It will impact on around two thirds of existing Australian accounting 

standards and the Australian Accounting Standards Board’s plan to issue one set of 

converged IFRS will apply to both profit and not-for-profit entities, including public 

sector entities.

Annual Reports
More timely tabling of Annual Reports in Parliament is a feature of the drive for 

improved accountability, and a re-engineering of audit processes will be required if 

this is to be achieved. Over time WA has not kept pace with trends to more timely 

sign-off of audit opinions achieved in other jurisdictions and there is an evident 

need for a concerted effort to improve the reporting process in WA.

The challenge for agencies of earlier reporting will be compounded by a new 

reporting regime, whereby agencies will be required in their annual reports to 

reflect their contribution to the Government’s Strategic Planning Framework (SPF), 

Better Planning: Better Services. This will entail the identification of an agency’s 

accomplishments and efforts in relation to the five goals listed in the Strategic 

Planning Framework – People and Communities, The Economy, The Environment, 

The Regions, and Governance.

Whilst my Office, as an independent accountability entity, is exempt from this 

requirement it supports and recognises the rationale behind this new reporting 

regime, and our own report will where appropriate take account of the principles 

behind the framework.

D D R PEARSON
AUDITOR GENERAL
August 31, 2004

Good corporate 

governance imperatives 

continue to increase ...

... these include Public 

Interest Disclosures, 

privacy considerations, 

and new funding 

arrangements for NFPOs 

... all having a direct and 

immediate effect on the 

Office.

The adoption of the 

IFRS has implications for 

public sector entities and 

therefore for public sector 

audit ...

... and together with the 

introduction of other 

significant changes in 

financial accounting 

principles and practices 

will have a significant 

impact on this Office's 

assurance workload over 

several years.
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To fulfil the Office of the Auditor General’s Purpose of SERVING THE PUBLIC INTEREST, 
the Office: 

Performance
Summary of Key Results and

Reporting on public 
sector performance 
in a relevant and 

authoritative 
manner, through:

Effectively 
communicating 

with Parliament, 
the public sector 
and the wider 

community, 
through:

Providing timely 
information and 

advice to the 
Auditor General 

to effectively fulfil 
his watchdog role, 

through:

Building a leading 
edge organisation, 

through:

� Integrated whole-
of-office topic 
identification and 
selection

� Better managing 
relationships with 
audited agencies to 
ensure appropriately 
smooth closure of 
projects

� Increasing the rigour 
of data collection and 
analysis

� Refining work group 
roles, focus and 
accountability

� Implementing a 
revised approach 
to the management 
and closure of 
performance 
reviews and CCA 
examinations

� Developing new 
approaches to 
reporting information 
to Parliament and the 
public

� Implementing 
innovative attest 
audit approaches to 
harness their potential 
to add value

� Exploiting available 
information to 
allocate and monitor 
resources

� Facilitating and 
implementing the 
Challenge Review 
process

� Incrementally shifting 
resources from audit 
opinions to matters of 
significance

� More rigorously 
utilising key 
performance 
indicators, output 
based management 
and focus statements 
to manage for results

� Enhancing risk 
management

� Developing and 
implementing a 
plan for professional 
development and 
training

� Improving the 
induction of new staff

STRATEGIES to achieve this Purpose are:

� independently informs Parliament on public sector accountability and performance 
and thereby contributes to a better performing public sector.
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What we set out to do What we achieved Comment

Report 100 Matters of Significance in 
reports to Parliament

112 Matters of Significance 
identified

Target met

Table at least 2 Public Sector Performance Reports 3 Public Sector Performance Reports 
were tabled

Target met

Table at least 6 single topic reports on Matters of Significance 
covering key areas of performance and accountability

7 reports and 2 follow-up reports 
tabled

Target met

Table 2 reports on the results of financial statement and 
performance indicator audits undertaken during the year

3 reports tabled Target met

Audit the financial statements, controls and performance 
indicators of approximately:
� 38 government departments
� 138 statutory authorities
� 36 request, subsidiary and cemetery audits, the Treasurer’s 

Annual Statements
� the Consolidated Financial Statements for the whole of 

government sector

Audit opinions were issued for:
� 37 government departments
� 145 Statutory authorities and 

corporatised bodies
� 37 request, subsidiary and 

cemetery audits, the Treasurer’s 
Annual Statements

� the Consolidated Financial 
Statements for the whole of 
government sector.

Target met.
Differences 
reflect 
changes to 
agencies' 
structures 
throughout 
the year.

Complete the audit of 33% of agencies representing 75% of the 
State’s assets within three months of their year end

Audits of agencies with June 30 
balance dates, collectively covering 
assets of $55.3 billion comprising 
approximately 75% of the State’s 
assets, were completed by 
September 30, 2003

Target met

Complete all opinions within statutory deadlines 100% Target met

The OUTCOME we seek is: 

� an informed Parliament on public sector accountability and performance.

Financial Attest Audits

Performance Indicator Audits �
These result in Audit 
Opinions which consume 
67% of our resources

�
222 Financial Statement and 
160 Performance Indicator 
Audits, competed in 2003-04

Controls, Compliance and 
Accountability Examinations 
(CCAs)

� These consume 10% of our 
resources � 11 CCA audits completed 

across 27 public sector 
agencies

Performance Examinations (PEs) � These consume 23% of our 
resources � 7 Performance Examinations 

and 2 follow-ups completed

Performance Auditing results in Reports to Parliament � 12 Reports tabled in Parliament

These Reports identify Matters of Significance which ultimately 
generates our desired Outcome � 112 Matters of Significance 

identified

This is achieved through our OUTPUT of PERFORMANCE AUDITING, which comprises:
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Our Performance 2003-04 
Output: Performance Auditing 
The Auditor General is responsible for undertaking the external audit of the Western Australian public sector. 

This is done through audits of controls, financial statements and performance indicators, examinations of 

efficiency and effectiveness, and the tabling of reports to Parliament. 

OUTCOME SOUGHT: A Parliament informed on public sector accountability and performance. Our Performance 

is measured through the Output measures of Quantity, Quality, Timeliness and Cost (see below) and through 

Key Efficiency Indicators for the Output, and Key Effectiveness Indicators for the Outcomes (see audited Key 

Performance Indicators pages 81-83). 

Item 2001-02
Result

2002-03
Result

2003-04
Result

2003-04
Target

Quantity
Matters of Significance reported in Parliament 91 120 112 100

Major audits 50 50 51 50

Other audits 217 226 171 162

Quality
Agreement in Parliamentary Census that the 
Matters of Significance raised in reports clearly 
communicate issues

84% 79% 80% 80%

Audit opinions consistent with standards 100% 100% 100% 100%

Timeliness
Agreement in Parliamentary Census that the 
Matters of Significance raised in reports are 
timely

83% 66% 69% 75%

Per cent of audit opinions issued within statutory 
deadlines

100% 100% 100% 100%

Cost
Average cost per Matter of Significance $42 818 $28 712 $35 571 $40 360

Average cost per major audit $80 389 $94 514 $102 220 $85 885

Average cost per other audit $12 424 $12 139 $15 959 $17 783

SUMMARY OF KEY RESULTS AND PERFORMANCE... continued
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Effectiveness
All Members of Parliament are surveyed annually to 

determine the extent to which the Office’s reports and 

services fulfil the needs of Parliament. Responses to specific 

questions relating to the achievement of our Outcome were 

sought by the Office and are reported as key effectiveness 

indicators below.

Effi ciency
The Office has a single Output - ‘Performance Auditing’, and 

efficiency indicators are formulated to measure the cost per 

quantity unit.

Financial Statement Audits
During 2003-04, 222 financial statement audits were 

completed with 15 qualified opinions issued. Details of the 

audited opinions issued during the year are:

The focus of audit opinion activity was on the dollar value of 

assets audited, rather than on the number of opinions issued. 

‘Time Period’ and ‘Dollar Value of Assets Audited’ targets 

were set early in the year for audits with December 31 and 

June 30 balance dates.

Audits of agencies with June 30 balance dates, collectively 

covering assets of $55.3 billion comprising approximately 75 

per cent of the State’s assets, were completed by September 

30, 2003. This represents a 39 per cent increase on 2002, 

when 54 per cent of the total State assets were audited by 

September 30, 2002.

In addition to audit opinions, 27 Certifications of Statements 

were issued to government agencies for purposes such as 

Commonwealth funding and grants acquittal.

Performance Indicator Audits
Advice is provided to agencies to assist them in the ongoing 

development and refinement of Key Performance Indicators 

that meet the requirements of the Financial Administration 

and Audit Act 1985 and Treasurer’s Instruction 904.

During the year 160 clear opinions were issued from 168 

completed performance indicator audits (a further 11 

agencies failed to submit the required indicators).

KPI 2001-02 2002-03 2003-04 2003-04 
Target

The Auditor 
General is 
effective in 
achieving his 
desired outcome 
of informing 
Parliament on 
public sector 
accountability 
and performance

84% 66% 66% 85%

The services 
of the Office 
are useful to 
Parliament

94% 76% 83% 80%

Reports dealt 
with matters of 
significance to 
Parliament

92% 83% 76% 85%

2001-02 
Actual

$

2002-03 
Actual

$

2003-04 
Actual

$

2003-04 
Target

$
Cost per 
Matter of 
Significance 
(MoS)

42 818 28 712 35 571 40 360

Average 
cost per 
Audit 
Opinion

Cost per 
major 
audit

80 389 94 514 102 220 85 885

Cost per 
other 
audit

12 424 12 139 15 959 17 783

Audits conducted under the FAAA: 
(Treasurer’s Annual Statements, 
Departments 39 Statutory Authorities 132)

172

Audits conducted under other legislation: 
(Subsidiaries 17, Corporatised Entities 10 
and Cemetery Boards 11)

38

Audits requested by the Treasurer under 
section 78 of the FAAA

12
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(a) Total Income refers to Total Operating Revenues and Total Revenues from Government

The following is a summary of the financial 

performance and position of the Office 

and trends from 2000 through to the 

current period ended June 30, 2004. 

The summary is based on the information 

provided in the Office’s audited Statements 

of Financial Performance and Statements 

of Financial Position.

There are two notable developments which 

distinguish 2004 from prior years:

� First, to better demonstrate the 

Office’s role as Parliament’s auditor, 

commencing with 2003-04, audit fees 

will no longer be credited to the Office.

Rather they will be paid directly into the 

Consolidated Fund. The effect is that 

revenue has reduced significantly as 

fees and Work in Progress (valued at 

$1 184 000) relating to the 2003-04 

audits is no longer taken up in the 

Office’s accounts as income nor as a 

current asset in 2003-04.

� Second, there has been an increase in 

expenditure of $1 098 000 on salaries 

mainly due to leave adjustments, 

increased utilisation of in-house staff 

on cost effectiveness grounds and a 

non-recurring severance payment.

If 2003 figures were adjusted for these 

changes, there would be no material 

change in the underlying trends (as 

indicated in brackets).

$’000
12 000

10 000

8 000

6 000

4 000

2 000

0

10 000
9 500
9 000
8 500
8 000
7 500
7 000
6 500

$’000
Net Cost of Services

 2000 2001 2002 2003 2004

�

�

�
�

�

� Revenues � Expenses � Net Cost of Services

Summary of Financial Performance

2000
$’000

2001
$’000

2002
$’000

2003
$’000

2003
$’000

Adjusted

2004
$’000

Financial 
Performance

Total Income (a) 11 156 10 879 11 194 11 526 (10 282) 10 587

Net Cost of 
Services

7 145 8 217 7 166 7 352 (9 116) 9 770

Change in Net 
Assets

551 -439 578 717 (-1 047) -1 339

2000
$’000

2001
$’000

2002
$’000

2003
$’000

2003
$’000

Adjusted

2004
$’000

Financial 
Performance

Revenue 3 460 3 101 3 450 3 457 (2 213) 2 133

Expenses 10 605 11 318 10 616 10 809 (11 329) 11 926

Net Cost 
of Services

7 145 8 217 7166 7 352 (9 116) 9 770

SUMMARY OF KEY RESULTS AND PERFORMANCE... continued

NET COST OF SERVICES
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2004 Parliamentary Census
The Customer Satisfaction Census of Members of Parliament is conducted by an independent market research 

company. The survey investigates MPs’ views on the services delivered to Parliament over the past 12 months. 

Survey forms were sent to all 91 Members, of whom 51 (56 per cent) completed at least part of the survey. This is 

16 per cent lower than last year’s figure (67) and similar to the 2002 response rate (58).

Results
� Satisfaction levels rose for three of the five indicators reported, with one indicator falling and one remaining 

static. While there has been an improvement in the level of satisfaction against most indicators, satisfaction 

has not returned to the very high levels achieved in 2001-02.

� Satisfaction measured against the key performance indictors (KPIs) saw a seven percentage point increase 

regarding the usefulness of services provided, with a corresponding seven percentage point decline regarding 

the question of whether reports dealt with matters of significance. Satisfaction against the third KPI (whether 

the Office is judged effective) remained unchanged.

� Two of the KPI results were below the target set in the 2003-04 Budget. One of these (effectiveness in 

achieving its desired outcome of informing Parliament on accountability and performance of the public sector) 

was significantly below the target at 66 per cent, compared to a target of 85 per cent.

� Despite the disappointing result above, the census indicated agreement among Parliamentarians that the 

services of the Office helped increase public confidence. This has risen in each of the past three years, rising 

from 52 per cent in 2002 to 70 per cent in 2004. Positive results were also recorded regarding whether 

services contributed to improved public sector accountability (83 per cent) and usefulness to Parliament (83 

per cent).

� While most published measures either displayed improved or unchanged satisfaction, one measure (whether 

reports dealt with matters of significance) declined both this and last year. The decline from 92 per cent 

satisfaction in 2001-02 to 76 per cent in 2003-04 represents a 17.4 per cent decline.

� Reaction to last year’s reports was very positive and saw improved levels of satisfaction from 2002-03. 

Most of the report items (11 out of 18 items surveyed) received mean satisfaction levels of 4.0 to 4.1 from 

a maximum score of five. The remainder achieved scores between 3.8 to 3.9. Eighty per cent of Members 

felt that reports clearly communicated issues, 54 per cent felt they communicated issues more clearly than 

in the past and 69 per cent felt reports were timely, while 76 per cent felt reports had dealt with matters of 

significance to Parliament.   
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The Report of the Accountable Officer 

(the OAG’s Annual Report) and 12 

audit reports (as summarised below) 

were tabled in Parliament during 

2003-04:

Report on Public Universities 
and TAFE Colleges for 2002 
(August 13, 2003)

Primarily, this Report provides a 

summary of the results of the financial 

statement, controls and performance 

indicator (PI) audits of Western 

Australia's four public universities 

and seven of their subsidiaries, and 

12 TAFE colleges, for the academic 

year ended December 31, 2002. The 

report finds that all four universities 

and 11 of 12 TAFE colleges had clear 

opinions, identifies a number of control 

deficiencies, and shows that State 

Government funding of colleges has 

increased 35 per cent.

Balancing Act: The Leasing of 
Government Assets 
(September 17, 2003)
This Report looks at how a sample 

of five public sector agencies is 

currently evaluating the strategic 

and financial impacts of leasing and 

managing leased assets, thereby 

ensuring that the public sector 

is not unduly disadvantaged by 

leasing arrangements or exposed to 

unnecessary risks.

It concludes that potential savings in 

procurement are possible for agencies 

by conducting comprehensive lease 

versus buy analyses to establish the 

most cost effective financing option; 

by avoiding actions that negate 

the benefits of leasing and result in 

additional costs; and by improving 

lease contract pricing through 

responding better to changes in market 

conditions.

Second Public Sector 
Performance Report 2003 
(September 24, 2003)

The report contains the results of 

two Controls, Compliance and 

Accountability examinations and one 

Performance Examination Report:

� Management of Water Resources in 
Western Australia

 Major challenges need to be 

addressed if WA is to effectively 

manage its water resources.

� Regulation of Gaming and Wagering 
In Western Australia

 Regulatory controls over most 

aspects of gaming and wagering 

are adequate though some 

improvement can be made to 

community gaming.

� Planning and Monitoring Vocational 
Education and Training

 The examination found that 

the Department of Education 

and Training needs to improve 

management of VET, including 

making plans more specific about 

types of students and courses to 

be funded, modifying funding 

agreements to ensure that detailed 

plans are put into effect, aligning 

Key Performance Indicators to 

the outcomes approach, and 

seeking to achieve better student 

completion rates.

Parliament 2003-04
Summary of Reports to

Audit Manager Stella Rapanaro conducted 
the CCA examination of the Regulation of 
Gaming and Wagering in Western Australia, 
part of the Second Public Sector Performance 
Report.
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A Roof Over Our Heads: 
Maintenance of Public Housing 
(October 29, 2003)

The cost of maintaining public housing, 

excluding the cost of refurbishments 

and improvements, was $33.2 million 

in 2002-03. The report concludes that 

Homeswest is managing satisfactorily in 

a challenging environment, but could 

improve the way it administers various 

maintenance processes.

Turning the Tide: The Business 
Sustainability of the Rottnest 
Island Authority 
(November 26, 2003)

The report found that the Rottnest Island 

Authority's financial performance is not 

sustainable and is adversely affecting 

economic, social and environmental 

performance. Without urgent attention, 

the RIA will be left with little choice but 

to reconsider public access and use of 

the island. 

The report contributes to saving the State 

from potentially significant financial 

liability and from the risk of litigation 

over health and safety risks to visitors 

and staff. Its recommendations should 

enable Rottnest to make a more positive 

contribution to the State’s tourism 

economy.

The Report has raised the profile and 

urgency of Rottnest’s position and 

encouraged Parliament, and the wider 

community, to engage in a positive 

discussion of how a sustainable future 

for Rottnest can be achieved. 

Report on Ministerial Portfolios 
at November 25, 2003 
(November 26, 2003)

This Report provides a summary of the 

results of 178 financial statements and 

controls audits and 133 performance 

indicator audits completed to November 

25, 2003; commentary on the quality 

and timeliness of financial statements 

and performance indicators; and 

details of specific control, corporate 

governance, accounting and auditing 

issues.

It also includes the results of an audit of 

act of grace and ex-gratia payments by 

agencies.

Patients Waiting: Access to 
Elective Surgery in Western 
Australia (December 9, 2003)

This examination reviewed how 

effectively elective surgery is provided 

to public patients in Western Australia. 

It did so in terms of how readily 

patients access their required surgery, 

coordination of access by the public 

health system, and usefulness of the 

waitlist information for managing 

elective surgery. It found that while 

waiting times for elective surgery were 

steady, 42 per cent of teaching hospital 

patients and 47 per cent of semi-urgent 

patients were waiting too long; the full 

range of waitlist data needed to be 

used to manage waitlists properly; and 

elective surgery continued to be less 

accessible in country areas. Government 

responded by allocating $10 million 

to reduce the waiting list, removing 

cosmetic surgery from the waitlist and 

making a commitment to use non-

teaching hospitals to reduce waitlists.
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Public Sector Performance 
Report 2004 (May 5, 2004)

The report contained the results of five 

CCA examinations and one Follow-up 

Performance Examination.

� Investigation of Breaches of 
Industrial Laws

 Building Industry investigations 

are reasonably handled but are 

often impaired by the refusal of 

individuals to participate.

� The Regulation of Human Organ 
and Tissue Removal

 The regulation of human organ 

and tissue removal is satisfactory. 

No instances of unauthorised 

removal were found.

� Computer Anti-Virus Management
 Computer Viruses are an 

increasing threat to public sector 

agencies. Ninety per cent of 

sampled government computer 

sites were not well prepared 

against virus attacks.

� Internal Audit in Government 
Agencies

 Internal Audit is an integral part of 

good corporate governance. Five 

of the six agencies sampled had an 

effective Internal Audit function.

� Management of Tree Plantations
 Tree plantations are a key strategy 

to address salinity concerns but 

government plantation targets are 

not being met.

� Follow-up Performance Examination 
– Surrender Arms?: Firearm 
Management in Western Australia

 The examination found that the 

Western Australian Police Service 

has largely implemented the OAG 

recommendations contained in the 

initial 2000 report.

Report on Universities and 
TAFE Colleges and other 
audits completed since 
November 25, 2003
(June 2, 2004)

Primarily, this Report summarises the 

results of 48 financial statement and 

controls audits and 29 performance 

indicator audits for four universities, 

seven of their subsidiaries and 10 TAFE 

colleges and 20 agencies with a June 

30, 2003 reporting date.

It also contains commentary on issues 

identified during the 2003 audits of 

universities and TAFE colleges and 

progress on issues previously reported, 

plus details of 27 certifications issued 

on agencies' financial and statistical 

data.

The report highlights that student fees 

and charges in universities increased 

38 per cent over the last four years 

and the cost for student curriculum 

hours has fluctuated marginally in TAFE 

colleges over that period.

SUMMARY OF REPORTS TO PARLIAMENT 2002-03 ... continued
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Administration of 
Superannuation (June 30, 2004)

This examination found that 

while the Government Employees 

Superannuation Board manages 

superannuation for its members 

satisfactorily, it needed to focus on 

containing its administration costs and 

reducing contribution error rates. 

Second Public Sector 
Performance Report 2004 
(June 30, 2004)

The report contained the results of 

three CCA examinations and one 

Follow-up Performance Examination.

� Management of Food Safety 
in Western Australia by the 
Department of Health

 WA has a good safety record but 

the Department of Health needs to 

improve its management of food 

safety to maintain this situation.

� Records Management in 
Government – A Preliminary Study

 The report finds agencies 

are making progress towards 

the implementation of good 

recordkeeping practices though 

some key steps still need to be 

taken, with agencies generally 

not recognising the importance 

of emails as potentially significant 

records.

� The Administration of Grants
 The key finding was that agencies 

were adequately managing their 

grant schemes with availability of 

grant funding properly publicised, 

applications impartially assessed 

against clear eligibility guidelines 

and grant moneys being suitably 

acquitted.

� Follow-up Performance Examination 
– A Tough Assignment: Teacher 
Placement in Government Schools

 This report followed up the 

October 2000 PE – A Tough 

Assignment: Teacher Placements 

in Government Schools. It found 

that it was not possible to conclude 

whether staffing of schools had 

improved or deteriorated since that 

report. The Department had made 

some useful changes to staffing 

practices since 2000, but detailed 

objectives and measures that were 

recommended in the 2000 report 

had not yet been developed.

Developing the State: 
The Management of State 
Agreement Acts (June 30, 2004)
This examination reviewed the extent to 

which Agreements have achieved their 

main objectives and the effectiveness 

of their administration. It found that 

State Agreements have delivered 

major projects over the years and now 

underpin the natural resource sector 

which drives the State economy. It 

recommends more robust management 

which has the potential to produce 

material and ongoing savings and 

gains over the next 50 years.

It reveals that efforts to renegotiate 

over $40 million in iron ore royalty 

concessions have to date been 

unsuccessful.

Performance Analyst Martin Puchmayer was 
a significant contributor to the performance 
examination Developing the State: The 
Management of State Agreement Acts.
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REPORT TYPE
DATE 

TABLED  COST1
NUMBER OF  
MATTERS OF 

SIGNIFICANCE

Report on Public Universities and TAFE Colleges for 2002 Attest 13/08/03 $44 5912 6

Balancing Act: The Leasing of Government Assets PE 17/09/03 $169 975 8

Second Public Sector Performance Report 2003 24/09/03

� Management of Water Resources in Western Australia CCA $61 543 6

� Regulation of Gaming and Wagering in Western Australia CCA $84 420 4

� Planning and Monitoring Vocational Education and Training in 
Western Australia

PE $227 759 4

A Roof Over Our Heads: Maintenance of Public Housing PE 29/10/03 $156 486 10

Turning the Tide: The Business Sustainability of the Rottnest Island 
Authority

PE 26/11/03 $274 506 10

Report on Ministerial Portfolios at November 25, 2003 Attest 03/12/03 $64 1562 9

� Act of Grace Payments in Government CCA $36 146 2

Patients Waiting: Access to Elective Surgery in Western Australia PE 09/12/03 $206 688 6

Public Sector Performance Report 2004 05/05/04

� Investigation of Breaches of Industrial Laws CCA $29 164 3

� The Regulation of Human Organ and Tissue Removal CCA $52 854 3

� Computer Anti-Virus Management CCA $44 447 2

� Internal Audit in Government Agencies CCA $61 228 3

� Management of Tree Plantations CCA $49 074 4

� Follow-up Performance Examination: Surrender Arms? 
–  Firearm Management in Western Australia

PE $35 200 3

Report on Universities and TAFE Colleges and other audits 
completed since November 25, 2003

Attest 02/06/04 $76 8772 6

Administration of Superannuation PE 30/06/04 $252 996 5

Second Public Sector Performance Report 2004 30/06/04

� Management of Food Safety in Western Australia by the 
Department of Health

CCA $32 989 4

� Records Management in Government – A Preliminary Study CCA $50 162 3

� The Administration of Grants CCA $68 101 1

� Follow-up Performance Examination: A Tough Assignment 
– Teacher Placement in Government Schools

PE $66 504 4

Developing the State: The Management of State Agreement Acts PE 30/06/04 $309 955 6

Parliament
Analysis of Reports to 

1 Costs are based on the full life of the project not just 2003-04 costs.
2 Costs reflect reporting element only, field work is charged to cost of issuing individual opinions.
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Follow-up Examinations
The Office of the Auditor General routinely ‘follows-up’ a Performance 

Examination two to three years after tabling. The purpose of the follow-up is 

to briefly review the progress that agencies have made in addressing issues 

and fixing problems. Occasionally, a more extensive follow-up is undertaken, 

if it is considered that the topic still has significant importance and relevance. 

This expanded follow-up is called a ‘follow-on’. Alternatively, if it is 

considered that the topic no longer has sufficient importance or relevance, it 

is not followed up at all.

REPORT REPORT TABLED FOLLOW-UP STATUS
Lease Now – Pay Later? The 
Leasing of Office and Other 
Equipment

June 1999 Follow-on report tabled 
September 2003

A Stitch in Time: Surgical 
Services in WA

November 1999 Follow-on report tabled 
December 2003

Surrender Arms? Firearm 
Management in Western 
Australia

September 2000 Tabled May 2004

A Tough Assignment: Teacher 
Placements in Government 
Schools

October 2000 Tabled June 2004

On-line and Length? Provision 
and use of learning technologies 
in Government schools

May 2001 No follow-up as a one-off 
program

Implementing and Managing 
Community Based Sentences

May 2001 A follow-up is scheduled for 
tabling in 2005

Lifting the Rating: Stroke 
Management in WA

August 2001 A follow-up is scheduled for 
tabling in 2005

Good Housekeeping: Facilities 
Management of Government 
Property and Buildings

August 2001 No follow-up because of 
comprehensive coverage of 
property management issues 
in other recent OAG reports

Righting the Wrongs: Complaints 
Management in the WA Public 
Sector

October 2001 A follow-up is scheduled for 
tabling in 2005

Life Matters: Management of 
Deliberate Self Harm in Young 
People

November 2001 A follow-up is scheduled for 
tabling in 2005

First Byte: Consortium IT 
Contracting in the WA Public 
Sector

December 2001 A follow-up is scheduled for 
tabling in 2005

Principal Performance Analyst Peter Ridgway 
undertook the performance examination on 
the Business Sustainability of the Rottnest 
Island Authority which generated wide 
public interest.
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In striving to fulfil our Purpose of Serving the Public Interest and in meeting and 

surpassing the expectations of our clients, we were acutely aware that the key 

to sustainable organisational success lay in our collective endeavours ultimately 

improving public sector performance while conjointly improving organisational 

performance.

Hence, our core operations during the year focused on ensuring that through 

accountability to Parliament community expectations regarding the use of public 

funds were realised. After all, since it is the community that makes a substantial 

contribution to meeting the cost of services provided by the State Government it has 

a right to expect that its hard-earned tax dollars are not wasted, but used wisely by 

public sector agencies in effectively and efficiently delivering services that make best 

use of those dollars, are equitable and result in positive outcomes for all.

Equally, given that in serving the public interest our core business entails reporting to 

Parliament on how well others in the public sector utilise the resources entrusted to 

them, it is imperative that we conduct our own affairs with maximum efficiency and 

effectiveness, striving to continually improve organisational performance.

Summary of Activity 
The core operations of the Office resulted in the completion of 222 audits of 

agencies’ financial statements, 160 audits of performance indicators, the conduct of 

11 controls, compliance and accountability examinations (CCAs), seven Performance 

Examinations (PEs), and two Follow-up Examinations. In total 112 matters of 

significance were reported to Parliament, exceeding the nominated target of 100.

A further 18 CCAs and six PEs were being developed at the end of the financial year. 

One examination had been placed on hold, and two were not progressed (either 

because of internal government reviews being undertaken in the respective area at 

the time or because no significant matters were identified). Over the year more than 

108 ideas and suggestions were added to the topic database which was regularly 

updated and reviewed to identify areas for more detailed examination. 

Also during the year some 908 hours and considerable resources were expended in 

responding to enquiries and complaints. There was overall an 11 per cent increase 

in enquiries and complaints, with 185 received (up from 166 last year). There were 

100 telephone contacts and 85 written contacts. 

Written enquires and complaints from the public went up from 72 to 76, whilst those 

from MPs went down from 15 to nine. Formal contact via the telephone from the 

public increased from 76 to 93, with telephone contact from MPs increasing by four 

contacts on the previous year.

Additional work for the Office arose from the passing of the Public Interest 

Disclosures Act 2003. Four such disclosures were registered in 2003-04. At the 

time of this report, investigations on two were almost complete, a third was about to 

commence whilst the fourth could not be investigated on legal advice. In total over 

750 hours were spent on public interest disclosure work.

Operations 2003-04
Review of

The key to achieving the 
sustainable outcomes we 
seek is recognition that our 
collective efforts will:

� Improve public sector 
performance.

� Improve our own 
performance.

During 2003-04:

� 222 financial statement 
audits completed.

� 160 performance indicator 
audits completed.

� 11 controls, compliance 
and accountability 
examinations conducted.

� 7 performance 
examinations and 2 
follow-up examinations 
concluded.

� 112 matters of significance 
reported.

� 12 reports tabled in 
Parliament.

� 18 CCAs and 6 PEs being 
developed.

� 108 ideas and suggestions 
added to topic database.

� 908 hours spent on 
responding to 185 
enquiries and complaints.

� 4 Public Interest Disclosure 
investigations commenced.
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� The application of internationally based 

financial reporting standards in 2005-06 

will impact on around two-thirds of existing 

Australian Accounting Standards. In 

2004-05 agencies will prepare two sets of 

financial statements based on the existing 

and new standards. As such it will have 

wide ranging implications for public sector 

entities and a substantial impact on the 

Office’s assurance workload over the next 

two years.

� The introduction of shared corporate 

service centres will increase the complexity 

of the audit task. It precludes the continued 

reliance on previous audit work and 

there will be a need to evaluate controls 

in the shared service centres as well as 

in individual agencies. In consequence 

increased audit work will be required 

to re-establish appropriate levels of 

assurance regarding the new systems 

and accountability relationships. There is 

potential for some longer term efficiencies 

to be gained through the standardisation 

of public sector corporate services and a 

reduction in the diversity and number of 

corporate information systems.

� Community expectations for independent 

and impartial information regarding 

accountability and performance in the 

public sector continue to grow. These 

trends are reflected in the number of 

enquiries and complaints about the 

public sector received by the Office from 

Members of Parliament and the general 

public. 

� The role of the Office as a named Proper 

Authority in the administration of the Public 

Interest Disclosure Act 2003 is expected 

to increase the workload of the Office. To 

date four disclosures and a further four 

significant enquiries have been received.

� Changes arising from the Review of 

Machinery of Government will continue to 

affect the complexity of audits undertaken. 

Some of the issues arising that reflect these 

changes are:

 � problems with basic financial 

housekeeping due to changed 

relationships and systems

 � valuations of assets transferred as part 

of restructures.

� There was an improvement on previous 

years in agency compliance with statutory 

deadlines for submitting financial 

statements and performance indicators 

to audit in the 2003 audit cycle, and 

it is expected this improvement will be 

consolidated in the next audit cycle.

� New applications of information 

technology continue to require auditors to 

adapt their skills and processes. Internal 

and external transactions, workflows 

and data storage are increasingly being 

computerised, and more information, 

which can be used for accountability 

purposes, is becoming available on 

websites. Keeping Office staff equipped 

with up-to-date computers, software and 

systems is a key factor in meeting this 

challenge.

� Contract audit costs are expected to 

be influenced by a number of factors 

including the adoption of more stringent 

professional standards and practices 

driven by recent corporate collapses, and 

the drive for more timely annual reporting.

� To improve transparency and encourage 

better practice financial and performance 

management, from 2004-05 the charging 

of audit fees will be extended to include 

agencies that are substantially funded 

through the Consolidated Fund.

Signifi cant Issues and Trends
Future impacts 

on the operations 

of the Office will 

include:

... the application 

of internationally 

based financial 

reporting standards 

in 2005-06, and 

the introduction of 

shared corporate 

service centres...

... changes arising 

from the Review 

of Machinery of 

Government ...

... and the Office 

being named as a 

Proper Authority in 

the administration 

of the Public 

Interest Disclosure 

Act 2003.
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Division Key Accountabilities
ASSURANCE SERVICES 

Objective:
To report to Parliament on the results of 
financial statement, controls and performance 
indicator audits of government entities.

� Prepares audit opinions and produces reports for tabling in Parliament 
covering the financial statement, controls and performance indicator audits of 
departments, statutory authorities and corporatised entities under the FAAA.

� Provides advice to agencies on financial and performance reporting including the 
application of the FAAA, Treasurer's Instructions and accounting standards.

� Audits financial and statistical information produced by departments and statutory 
authorities to assist them discharge conditions of Commonwealth funding 
agreements, grants and other legislation.

� Liaises with Department of Treasury and Finance on financial reporting issues and 
changes to legislative compliance requirements.

COMPLIANCE AND INFORMATION 
SYSTEMS AUDITS

Objective:
To provide key information to Parliament about 
the regulatory, financial and administrative 
compliance and performance of agencies.

� Produces reports to Parliament detailing the results of control, compliance and 
accountability examinations undertaken across the public sector.

� Produces technical advice to agencies arising from information systems audits.
� Provides advice to public sector agencies including central agencies.
� Undertakes Public Interest Disclosure (PID) investigations.
� Provides advice to the Auditor General on areas of public sector operations that 

may warrant examination.

PERFORMANCE REVIEW 

Objective:
To conduct efficiency and effectiveness 
examinations of public sector agencies and 
programs.

� Produces reports to Parliament detailing the results of Performance Examinations 
undertaken across the WA public sector. 

� Provides briefings and advice to Parliament, Executive Government, and agencies 
on the reports.

STANDARDS AND QUALITY 

Objective:
Providing a high standard of cost effective 

advice and customer service.

� Reviews audit files and working papers to provide assurance that audits and 
examinations have been conducted in accordance with office and professional 
standards.

� Coordinates advice to agencies on performance and accountability issues.
� Provides technical advice to staff and public sector agencies in relation to 

financial reporting and the preparation of key performance indicators (KPIs).
� Liaises with the Department of Treasury and Finance (DTF) on financial 

reporting issues and changes to legislation affecting financial and  compliance 
requirements.

� Provides advice and information to the Auditor General on strategic, policy and 
technical issues affecting the audit operations of the Office.

BUSINESS AND STRATEGIC SERVICES

Objective:
Providing a high standard of cost effective 

advice and customer service.

� Manages strategic issues, relationships and innovation in the OAG and 
coordinates internal planning, review and reporting cycles. 

� Reviews projects and reports to Parliament to ensure content is aligned with the 
priorities of the AG and that all relevant risks are managed.

� Undertakes the coordination and in-house production of reports to Parliament, 
and their distribution to key client groups. 

� Ensures that the human, information, financial and other resources of the OAG 
are used efficiently to provide services responsive to the needs of staff and 
stakeholders in Office operations. 
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Key Outputs Key Outcomes Future Directions
� 222 Financial Statement and 160 

Performance Indicator audits completed.
� 3 reports tabled in Parliament.
� 27 certifications issued to assist agencies 

to meet funding conditions. 

� Members of Parliament and agency 
management are able to make more 
measured, timely and appropriate 
decisions due to receiving early quality 
information on the outcomes of financial 
statement and performance indicator 
audits.

� Audits of agencies with June 30 balance 
dates, collectively covering assets of 
$55.3 billion comprising approximately 
75 per cent of the State's assets, were 
completed by September 30, 2003.

� Continue the strategy of improvement in 
quality and more timely submission of 
financial statements and performance 
indicators for audit.

� Further development of methodology 
to continually improve audit of shared 
service clusters.

� 11 CCA examinations reported to 
Parliament covering activities at 27 
different agencies.

� Work in progress on 18 other CCA 
examinations.

� Assessed information systems at 31 sites 
in support of financial statement and 
control opinions.

� Managed the registration and 
investigative process of four public 
interest disclosures.

� A Parliament which is better informed and 
able to make decisions about regulatory, 
financial and administrative issues facing 
agencies.

� Changes to agency practices resulting 
in enhanced and more reliable 
performance.

� Public confidence in the State’s public 
interest disclosure regime.

� Greater use of specialist assistance to 
facilitate more complex examinations.

� Increased focus on critical government 
information systems.

� Adoption of tools to automate 
information system audits of shared 
service sites.

� 9 performance examinations completed:
 � 6 stand alone Reports 
 � 2 Follow-ups and one Performance  

 Examination reported in Public  
 Sector Performance Report.

� Advice and guidance given to all 
agencies required to report performance 
indicators.

� Performance examination reports 
generated positive impacts and reforms 
in public sector agencies and across the 
public sector in general.

� Parliament was provided with high quality 
analyses of public sector accountability 
and performance on which to base 
decision-making.

� Continued recognition for the Division 
as a leading authority on improving 
performance.

� Continued refinement of methodology 
and training aimed at maximising the 
quality and efficiency of performance 
examination and indicator work.

� Continued use of specialist assistance 
to undertake performance examination 
work, particularly in technical areas that 
require expert knowledge.

� Quality assurance reviews undertaken of 
a sample of Attest Audits, CCAs and PEs.

� Advice given to auditors and agencies on 
KPIs.

� Contributed to DTFs latest revision 
of the Treasurer’s Instructions and 
model financial statements and 
assisted in preparing the public sector 
for International Financial Reporting 
Standards (IFRS).

� Provides assurance to Parliament that 
audits and examinations have been 
conducted in accordance with OAG and 
professional standards.

� KPIs are clearly linked to outcomes and 
are measurable.

� Model financial statements issued by 
DTF were reviewed. Checklists on IFRS 
implementation provided to agencies.

� Continue with reviews.
� Involvement in the continued 

development of KPIs incorporating 
sustainability and linking outcomes to 
government desired outcomes.

� Ongoing preparation of OAG staff for 
IFRS implementation and development of 
audit approach for shared service centres 
under FRIT.

� Parliamentary Census coordinated.
� 13 major reports coordinated and 

produced, with accompanying media 
relations.

� Advice and briefings provided to the 
Auditor General on accountability issues 
and Office performance.

� Integrated Office planning and 
coordination of services.

� Awareness of the role and contribution 
of the Auditor General to public sector 
accountability.

� Responsive support to operational 
Divisions in the delivery of services.

� Recruiting, developing and retaining 
staff to best meet current and future 
operational requirements.

� Maintain and strengthen services that 
assists operational divisions to deliver 
their planned outcomes.

� Facilitate development of business plans 
by divisions and monitor delivery against 
plans.
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Achievements
� One Ministerial Portfolio Report and 

two Tertiary Sector Reports tabled.

� 21 Matters of Significance identified 

in the reports produced by the 

Division.

� 222 Financial Statement and 

160 Performance Indicator audits 

completed.

� The total audit program completed 

within statutory deadlines.

� All reports met Quality targets.

� Five graduates recruited and 

commenced training.

� Further enhancements made to Audit 

methodology and training conducted.

The core business of the Office is called Performance Auditing. This is a total 

audit service, encompassing the audit of public sector agencies’ financial 

statements and performance indicators, ensuring controls within agencies 

are adequate and that all relevant regulations has been complied with, and, most 

importantly, extending to direct examinations into the efficiency, effectiveness, 

and economy of agency operations or programs. The Office’s three operational 

divisions – Assurance Services Division, Compliance and Information 

Systems Division, Performance Review Division – share the key accountabilities 

in improving public sector performance through Performance Auditing, as it is the 

results of their audits and examinations that are reported directly to Parliament via 

Reports of the Auditor General.

These reports assure Parliament of the soundness of public sector accountability 

and performance. Hence, the operations of the Office and the resultant 

independent reports of the Auditor General assist Members of Parliament to 

better understand the performance of public sector agencies. Equally, together 

with advice provided to agencies by the Office, such as on the crucial task 

of developing Key Performance Indicators, they assist agency management 

in improving the cost effectiveness and responsiveness of their services whilst 

promoting good governance and sound financial management and reporting.

Improving Financial Management and 
Administration
The operations of the Assurance Services Division serve a two-fold purpose 

– providing Parliament with opinions on the integrity of public sector agency 

financial statements, performance indicators and related legislative controls, whilst 

concurrently promoting greater agency accountability through improved financial 

management and control systems.

Whilst focused on achieving the corporate outcomes and divisional objectives 

sought by the Office, the scope and nature of the work and the results delivered 

have an impact beyond simply ensuring that the ‘books balance’ and agencies 

comply with the rules. At a wider level it is about serving the public interest, by 

providing Parliament with quality information through reports tabled in Parliament 

that identify matters of significance. Such information can then be factored into 

Parliament’s decision-making when resourcing agencies to deliver programs and 

services.

Hence operations have the potential to initially improve financial management 

and accountability across the public sector, increase the transparency of public 

sector operations, and thus ultimately provide Parliament with assurance about 

public administration. In turn that assurance, complemented by our scrutiny of any 

changes in public sector strategic direction, has the propensity to build public trust 

in the process of government and improve public confidence in government.

IMPROVING PUBLIC SECTOR PERFORMANCE

REVIEW OF OPERATIONS...continued

Principal Performance Analyst Colin Campbell 
had considerable input into the CCA examinations 
reported in the OAG's Public Sector Performance 
reports in 2003-04.



AUDITOR GENERAL WA — ANNUAL REPORT 2003-04        31 

Improving Controls, Compliance and Accountability
The broad purpose of the Compliance and Information Systems Division is to 

enhance public sector operations by assessing whether key areas of public sector 

operations are reliable and following accepted good practice. This is done through 

two equally important functions. 

� One function involves the undertaking of Controls, Compliance and 

Accountability (CCAs) examinations on issues that have a broad application 

across the public sector such as contract management, procurement and 

records management. CCAs also focus on important regulatory compliance 

areas such as food safety and water licensing.

� The other function involves assessing the capacity of agency computer 

systems to provide accurate and reliable financial and performance indicator 

information.

Reports to Parliament and advice to agencies arising from both functions 

enhance transparency, accountability and facilitate improvements to public sector 

operations.

Improving the Effi ciency and Effectiveness of 
Agency Operations
The role of the Auditor General is not simply about ensuring public money is spent 

according to the rules – it is also about ensuring that the community receives 

value for its tax dollars. The Performance Review Division therefore conducts 

comprehensive examinations of government activities to ensure they are both 

efficient and effective. Examinations do not question the objectives of government 

programs, but focus on whether stated objectives are being met. Ultimately they 

deliver reports to Parliament analysing programs, identifying key findings and 

making recommendations for changes that will improve public sector performance. 

The findings and recommendations are designed to encourage and assist agencies 

to remedy deficiencies by identifying ways of improving systems and controls. The 

reports promote good management principles and practices that are applicable 

to the wider public sector. Together the examinations and the follow-up reviews of 

selected examinations two to three years later, aim to provide Parliament with a 

reliable basis to assess agency performance.

Achievements
� Eleven CCA examinations tabled 

involving 27 different agencies.

� 35 Matters of Significance identified.

� Quality, quantity and cost targets met.

� Work is underway on 18 new CCA 

projects.

� Four public interest disclosures (PIDs) 

registered.

� Information system auditors 

completed assessments of agency 

computer systems by the required 

dates.

� Inter-Government assistance provided 

in the undertaking of an information 

systems audit of the First Home 

Owners Grant Scheme.

Achievements
� Completed seven examinations and 

two follow-ups.

� 56 Matters of Significance identified.

� Average Project Cost targets and 

timeframes were met.

� Assisted the Public Accounts 

Committee with their report on Inquiry 

into Hospital Trust Accounts.

� Contributed to the Department of the 

Premier and Cabinet reference group 

on complaints management.

� Extensive development work 

undertaken to identify topics of public 

and Parliamentary interest.

� Quality and integrity of reports as 

assessed by Corporate Executive, 

sustained.
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The responsibility of supporting the work of the three operational divisions, 

efficiently and effectively managing the Office and improving organisational 

performance falls to the Standards and Quality Division and the 

Business and Strategic Services Division. 

Collectively it is appreciated that quality is the key to delivering superior products 

and services that bring value to our clients’ operations and our own. Near enough 

is never good enough. Equally, it is realised that to remain leaders in public sector 

audit the Office must have the vision and broad perspective that enables us to 

stand at the forefront of our profession, set the standards and show the way. 

Hence all staff strive for excellence in what they do, in the knowledge that through 

professional and personal development and increased experience it is always 

possible to do it better.

Enhancing the Standard and Quality of Audit 
Services
The Standards and Quality Division’s primary purpose is to provide the Auditor 

General with assurance that the operational divisions of the Office are complying 

with Office and professional standards in the conduct and reporting of audits and 

examinations.

In addition, the Division fulfils a significant role in the quality of key performance 

indicator reporting within the Western Australian public sector.

The Division also identifies and develops audit approaches to public sector 

wide initiatives such as the implementation of International Financial Reporting 

Standards (IFRS) and Shared Corporate Service Centres (SCSC).

The development and adoption of standards relating to the Office’s assurance 

services and performance review functions, and the monitoring of performance 

against these standards is a major function of the Division. Technical support and 

advice is given to audit staff on audit policies, practices and procedures, and on 

developments in auditing, Accounting Standards and Treasurer’s Instructions.

The quality review work undertaken ensures that audits and examinations have 

been conducted in accordance with Office methodology, polices and standards. 

These reviews also contribute to the continuous improvement of audits and 

examinations.

Performance indicator services involve liaison with the Departments of Treasury 

and Finance, and Premier and Cabinet to ensure that agency outcomes can be 

measured and are clearly linked to government strategic goals and outcomes. 

Technical advice and guidance is provided to agencies and OAG staff.

Achievements
� Quality Assurance reviews undertaken 

of a sample of Attest Audits, CCAs 

and PEs.

� The Division contributed to the 

Department of Treasury and Finance’s 

latest revision of the Treasurer’s 

Instructions and model financial 

statements.

� Checklist for IFRS provided to 

agencies to assist in their preparation 

for implementation.

� Comments provided on all relevant 

Exposure Drafts on accounting and 

auditing issued by Standards Setting 

bodies.

� Enhanced performance indicator 

training package developed for staff.

� Provided advice in relation to 

accountability issues and compliance 

with the FAAA to the Functional 

Review Implementation Team (FRIT).

IMPROVING ORGANISATIONAL PERFORMANCE

REVIEW OF OPERATIONS...continued

Associate Director, Standards Barry Rowe 
undertook quality assurance reviews of Attest 
Audits, Performance Examinations and CCAs, to 
ensure they met best practice.
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Enhancing the Relevance, Quality and Timeliness 
of Services
Challenges for Business and Strategic Services are to support the Auditor 

General and ensure his reports and his wider role in the community best address 

the needs of Parliament and public for independent information, and to provide 

integrated services that support and enhance the performance of the OAG. The 

Division’s responsibilities in this pivotal support role for the Office are further 

outlined in the following ‘Managing the Office’ section of this report, and highlight 

key accountabilities in the areas of corporate governance, stewardship of our 

resources, human resources management, communications, and building strategic 

relationships with our stakeholders.

The planning and coordination role entails the provision of strategic advice, 

monitoring and analysing issues and trends, and liaising with key stakeholders 

in the Office’s operations. A range of editorial and communications services are 

provided to the Auditor General to ensure that both staff and external clients, such 

as Parliament and the media, are fully informed of Office policy, practice and 

operations. 

Leadership in the management of human, information, financial and other 

resources is provided to the Office to ensure their efficient use and the flexibility 

to meet emerging needs. The skills, information and knowledge held by staff and 

Office systems are the most valuable assets of the organisation. Expert advice is 

provided on HR matters to support the recruitment, development and retention 

of the highly skilled staff needed to support the Office’s mission. Innovative 

approaches are continually being sought to better manage the Office’s information 

and knowledge, and to provide financial and administrative support that is closely 

integrated with OAG operational requirements. The development and maintenance 

of strategic relationships is a further key component of the Division’s wider role.

Achievements
� Provided advice and customer services 

that were rated as being of a high 

standard and cost-effective. 

� Developed a successful submission 

to the Government on the long-term 

resourcing needs of the Office and 

changes to the fee arrangements to 

allow the Office to charge a fee for all 

attest audit costs from Consolidated 

Fund agencies.

� Introduced procedures to enable the 

AG to fulfil his responsibilities under 

the Public Interest Disclosure Act 

2003.

� Strengthened relationships with other 

audit offices through the Australasian 

Council of Auditors General network.

� 2002-03 Annual Report won national 

Silver ARA Award for Excellence in 

Annual Reporting, and the WS Lonnie 

Cup at State level. 

� Continued enhancement to the 

website has improved access to 

reports.

� Briefing papers prepared for 

presentations by the AG to 19 major 

conferences and four meetings 

with Parliamentary Committees, the 

Premier, Deputy Premier and Leader of 

Opposition. 

� 185 enquiries and complaints 

responded to.

HR Officer Nigel Pay provides expert advice to OAG staff and management on 
a wide range of human resources and staffing issues.
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As our responsibilities include reporting to Parliament on how others in the 

public sector use their resources, we too strive to conduct our own affairs 

with maximum efficiency and effectiveness. We aim to be exemplary in 

managing our resources, our people and our relationships consistent with being a 

leader in public sector auditing. 

This challenge of exemplary corporate management underpins all aspects of our 

operations – from the soundness of our strategic planning and quality assurance, 

through the planning of our audits and examinations, to our stewardship of the 

funds allocated to us by Parliament and the professional development of the 

individuals that choose to be part of our organisation. 

The factors that shape and sustain this corporate philosophy are diverse. They are 

implicit in the organisation’s structure, management style and processes, which 

support the values and behaviours that underlie the Office’s purpose of Serving the 

Public Interest. 

Our corporate philosophy is based on a commitment to quality, professional 

conduct and excellence of service in acting as a catalyst in improving management 

in the public sector. 

Above all, the Office recognises that the key factor pivotal to the success of all 

client service and audit strategies is the creation of an ethical and equitable 

workplace, free from bias, which values diversity and encourages both individual 

and collective achievement. Our greatest strength is the competence, dedication 

and enthusiasm of our staff. 

Independence exercised with integrity and objectivity is the foundation upon which 

all operations and professional relationships are built. Our ethos is that we seek to 

be recognised as Independent, Credible, and Innovative. 

Hence we are determined that in achieving our purpose as an organisation and as 

individuals we will always act in a way that values: 

� Integrity – we will conduct our business in a professional, ethical and objective 

manner and take an open, honest and fair approach to our external and 

internal stakeholders. 

� Quality – we will improve the performance of the Office and the public sector 

by working together to do the right thing well and at the right time. 

� People – we will respect and value the contribution of our people and 

encourage a cooperative approach to how things get done. 

Our Office has an abiding commitment to managing our resources, managing our 

people and managing our relationships to the highest standards thus ensuring we 

ourselves practice what we preach.

Managing the
Office

As an audit office we aim 

to practice what we preach 

...

... and the challenge 

of exemplary corporate 

management underpins all 

our endeavours.

Our corporate philosophy 

is based on a commitment 

to quality, professional 

conduct and excellence of 

service ...

... with our greatest 

strength the dedication and 

enthusiasm of our staff.

Independence exercised 

with integrity and 

objectivity is the foundation 

upon which all operations 

and professional 

relationships are built...

... our ethos is that we 

seek to be recognised as 

Independent, Credible, and 

Innovative.
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Best practice in Corporate Governance is a key objective of the Office. 

Achievement of this objective is a major responsibility of Corporate Executive 

and entails the consideration and approval of all Office policies, setting strategic 

direction and resource allocation, as well as monitoring Office performance, 

progress against targets and resource use. During the year the former Assurance 

Services Committee (ASCOM), Performance Review Committee (PARCOM), 

Information Management Committee (IMC) and the Operational Policy and 

Standards Committee (OPSCOM) were wound up, the responsibilities of the first 

three being transferred to Division Heads and the fourth to the Office Consultative 

Committee (OCC). 

Details on the new committee structure can be found in Appendix 3 (p 88).

Peer Review
To ensure that the Office lives up to the high standards it sets itself a regular Peer 

Review of the Office is undertaken. The Peer Review is a vital part of the process 

of continuous improvement, and provides the impetus for the Office to finetune 

operations to better serve Parliament, the public and audit clients. A Peer Review 

by two highly-experienced, senior auditors was commenced at the end of the 

reporting year.

The report indicates that overall the review endorsed current approaches and 

methodologies, concluding that the Office operates effectively and is efficient in 

meeting its goals.

Corporate Executive is currently considering the Review's recommendations 

but recognises that in implementing them there are still essential issues to be 

addressed. The report along with the Office's response will be provided to the 

relevant Parliamentary committees in the near future.

Internal Audit 
The Office’s internal audit function, which covers operational, financial, 

compliance and other matters as directed by the Auditor General, is resourced 

through contracted expertise. The Executive Director, Standards and Quality 

Division has responsibility for internal audit. 

External Audit 
The independent external audit of the Office is undertaken by the private firm Rix 

Levy Fowler which is appointed by the Governor pursuant to Section 81 of the 

Financial Administration and Audit Act 1985. 

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

Best practice in corporate 

governance is the 

foundation on which all 

operations are built ...

... with Corporate 

Executive setting strategic 

direction, overseeing 

resource usage and 

monitoring performance ...

... a regular Peer Review 

tells us if we're on the 

right track and facilitates 

continuous improvement...

... a Peer Review has 

recently been completed 

with positive results...

... the Office's internal 

audit function is resourced 

through contracted 

expertise...

... and the independent 

external audit review of 

the Office is undertaken 

by a private firm which 

is appointed by the 

Governor.

Managing the Offi ce
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Principal Performance 
Analyst, Colin Campbell

INFORMATION 
SYSTEMS
Manager, Steve Mackessy

STANDARDS
Associate Director
Barry Rowe

PERFORMANCE INDICATOR 
REVIEW
Performance Indicator Coordinator, 
Rod Berg

COMMUNICATIONS
Manager, Peter Villiers

FINANCIAL AND 
ADMINISTRATIVE RESOURCES
Manager, Les Johnstone

HUMAN RESOURCES
Manager, Pam Aaronson

INFORMATION RESOURCES
Manager, Vince Partridge

The Organisation

AUDITOR GENERAL
DES PEARSON
B Bus, Grad Dip Mgt, FIPAA
FCPA, FAIM

Extensive experience in 
corporate management 
and public sector audit.

Extensive senior executive 
experience in Federal 
and State public sectors 
throughout Australia in the 
financial services regulatory 
environment together with 
corporate governance and 
enforcement expertise in 
both Australia and South 
East Asia.

Extensive audit and 
corporate management 
experience in the public 
and not-for-profit sectors. 

Specialist in industry 
deregulation and sale of 
major government assets. 
Lengthy career in domestic 
and international banking. 

Diverse experience in Australia 
and overseas including roles 
as an engineer, university 
lecturer, research consultant 
and 20 years as a public sector 
manager.

Extensive audit and 
corporate management 
experience in the public 
sector.

MANAGING THE OFFICE .... continued
Corporate Governance

EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR
Stephen Howell,
Dip Crim J, FCPA

A/EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR
Glen Clarke, B Bus, CPA

EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR
Graham Baker, Grad Dip 
Bus Mgt, Ass Dip Banking & 
Finance, MBA, FAICD, FAIBIF, 
FAIE

A/EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR
Paul Jost, B Bus, FCPA

A/EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR
Peter Wilkins, PhD, MIPAA
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Risk Management 
Operations are undertaken against a whole-of-office risk management matrix, 

as approved by Corporate Executive. Whilst the Executive Director, Business and 

Strategic Services Division, has overall responsibility for risk management and 

reports bi-annually to Corporate Executive, the relevance of the matrix is regularly 

monitored and reviewed by the Office Consultative Committee throughout the year. 

Code of Conduct and Staff Declarations 
The Office’s Code of Conduct is regularly reviewed and amended to ensure its 

ongoing importance and relevance to staff. It is available to all staff on the Office’s 

intranet and is linked to the Office of Public Sector Standards’ Code of Ethics. The 

Code is part of the induction process and all permanent and temporary employees 

are required to read and acknowledge it. 

All new and current employees are required to sign annual Staff Declaration forms 

as part of the Office’s commitment to ensuring staff are aware of their obligations 

in respect to the Code of Ethics and Code of Conduct, and policies in relation to 

Equal Employment Opportunity, access to the Office’s facilities and physical assets, 

and use of the internet. 

Corporate Executive 
The Corporate Executive of the Office of the Auditor General comprises the 

Auditor General and five Executive Directors (Assurance Services, Compliance 

and Information Systems Audits, Performance Review, Standards and Quality and 

Business and Strategic Services). These Officers are all professionally qualified in 

their area of expertise and possess relevant, broadly-based policy development, 

performance evaluation, audit and accountancy skills. All have extensive public 

sector experience. 

The Corporate Executive attests that all of the following corporate governance 

responsibilities have been appropriately and fully addressed: 

� Confirming the Office’s financial statements. 

� Appropriate consideration of the recommendations and advice of the internal 

and external auditors and other external advisers on the operational and 

financial risks that face the Office. 

� Ensuring the Office has an appropriate internal control environment in place to 

manage identified key risks. 

� Reviewing and improving existing Office risk management strategies. 

Risk Management 

principles are applied 

to all areas of Office 

operations ...

... with all staff guided by 

a strict Code of Conduct 

and a Code of Ethics...

... and required to 

sign Staff Declarations 

acknowledging their 

obligations.

The members of Corporate 

Executive are all 

professionally qualified in 

their area of expertise and 

possess relevant, broadly-

based policy development, 

performance evaluation, 

audit and accountancy 

skills. 
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� Ensuring adherence to the Office Code of Conduct, the Public Sector Code 

of Ethics, and all standards of the Office of the Public Sector Standards 

Commissioner by all executives, management and staff in carrying out their 

duties and responsibilities. 

� Providing the Auditor General with advice on strategic direction. 

� Assisting in developing corporate policy. 

� Monitoring the operations and finances of the Office. 

Audit Offi ce Resourcing 
Each year the Australasian Council of Auditors-General (ACAG) undertakes 

a series of benchmarking exercises. One of the benchmark measures is the 

resourcing of an Audit Office in relation to total transactions (cents/$’000). It 

is a useful macro level indicator of the resources allocated to the audit process 

compared to the value of total transactions, a proxy measure of the total audit task.

In 2002-03, out of the eight State and Territory jurisdictions only two had a lower, 

and four a higher, resourcing level than Western Australia. The lower than average 

resourcing level in Western Australia is notable given the relatively broad audit 

mandate provided by the Western Australian legislation – in particular it includes a 

specific consideration of controls when issuing an Opinion and the auditing of key 

performance indicators which are not generally required in other States/Territories.

MANAGING THE OFFICE .... continued
Corporate Governance

Total State 
Transactions 

($’m)

Audit 
Expenditure 

($’000)

Western 
Australian Audit 
Resources per 

Total State 
Transactions 
(cents/$’000)

Average of 
State and 

Territory Audit 
Transactions 
(cents/$’000)

2003-04 33 6671 11 854 35 N/A

2002-03 32 814 10 821 33 38

2001-02 31 215 10 556 34 38

2000-01 30 275 11 314 37 40

1999-00 30 421 10 605 35 40

$0.42

$0.40

$0.38

$0.36

$0.34

$0.32

$0.30
 1999-00 2000-01 2001-02 2002-03 2003-04

� Western Australia 

� State and Territory Average

AUDIT COST IN RELATION 
TO STATE TRANSACTIONS

AUDIT COST IN RELATION TO STATE TRANSACTIONS

... and that all staff comply 

with the Office Code of 

Conduct, the Public Sector 

Code of Ethics, and all 

standards of the Office of 

the Public Sector Standards 

Commissioner.

Each year the Office 

benchmarks itself against 

other Australian audit 

offices ...

... last year, out of the 

eight State and Territory 

jurisdictions only two had a 

lower resourcing level than 

Western Australia.

1 Due to lags in the publication of ABS government financial statistics, the latest WA State 
Transactions figure is an estimate, based on the previous year's data adjusted by the CPI.
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Finance and Administrative Resources
The Finance and Administrative Resources Branch continued to provide financial 

and administrative support services for the Office. The efficiency of the Branch 

was further improved during the year with the continued integration of the Office’s 

key corporate systems and the finetuning of the financial system and its related 

processes.

A highlight was the extension of charging audit fees to encompass most agencies 

commencing with 2003-04 audits. This initiative will provide ongoing transparency 

of the cost of assurance services and make agencies that were not paying a fee 

sensitive to the true cost of the audit and related services. It will also help ensure 

that agencies give appropriate priority to sound financial management.

Information Resources
Information Management
The Information Management section progressed the take-up of the TRIM 

Electronic Document Management System within the Office, with a number of 

pilot programs being conducted. An Information Management Plan covering 

the two year period 2004-05 was developed and key elements endorsed for 

implementation, aimed at enhancing information management within the office. 

Essential services based around the management of paper-based records and 

provision of specialised library services were also provided to all staff within the 

Office, and an effective and customer-focused Reception desk function served as 

the initial contact point for visitors and telephone enquiries.

Information Technology
The Information Technology Section continued to provide support to the Office’s 

information technology environment. The section upgraded all Office laptop 

computers to current versions of operation system and application software, 

providing improved functionality and reliability to internal clients. New server and 

storage devices based on high availability technology were acquired to replace 

obsolete server equipment. A review of network and internal security controls 

was performed and recommendations implemented, and virus management 

improvements were also implemented. A remote environmental monitoring and 

alarm system was installed to provide early detection and warning of environmental 

system failures.

STEWARDSHIP OF OUR RESOURCES

In 2003-04 the Office's 

key corporate systems 

were further integrated ...

... and the financial system 

finetuned ...

... to accommodate 

charging audit fees to 

most agencies ... thus 

assisting the Office to 

communicate the true cost 

of assurance services.

The implementation of 

an electronic document 

management system was 

progressed ... and an 

Information Management 

Plan developed.

Office laptop computers 

were upgraded ... and 

obsolete servers replaced 

... network security 

and virus management 

was upgraded ... 

environmental system 

monitoring introduced.

Managing the Offi ce
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The Environment
Recognising its broader environmental obligations as a good corporate citizen, 

the Office actively sought to minimise any impact of its operations on the 

environment through education and responsible management. Reduce, reuse and 

recycle was the approach, with practical measures such as the use of recycled 

paper in publications, use of recycled diskettes, recycling toner cartridges and the  

positioning of recycling bins through the organisation helping all staff to do their bit 

for the environment.

Energy Saving Initiatives
During the year the following energy saving initiatives were undertaken:

� Lighting in the car park and lower basement have movement sensors to turn 

lights on and off after hours.

� Electrical sub-metering upgrade to the building automation system. This 

enables each tenant to obtain precise metre readings on energy consumption, 

where in the past it was based on floor space and a percentage of the overall 

energy consumption.

The Office of the Auditor General has committed to achieve a reduction of at least 

12 per cent in non-transport related energy use by 2006-07 and is achieving this, 

with a 17.5 per cent reduction recorded in 2003-04.

MANAGING THE OFFICE .... continued
Stewardship of  our Resources

Energy Smart 
Government Program

Baseline 
Data

2003-04 
Actuals

Variation 
%

Energy Consumption (MJ) 630 520 17.5%

Energy Cost ($) $22 764 $18 336

Greenhouse Gas Emissions 
(tonnes of CO2)

161 137

Performance Indicators

MJ/sqm 317MJ/m2 300 MJ/m2

MJ/FTE 6 001 MJ/FTE 5 362 MJ/FTE

The Office recognises its 

obligations to the broader 

environment ...

... reduce, reuse and 

recycle is the collective 

approach...

... with energy saving 

initiatives at the forefront 

...

... and during the year a 

17.5 per cent reduction in 

energy use was achieved.
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The Office of the Auditor General is made up of some 100 dedicated staff from 

a diversity of backgrounds. They are committed, talented professionals with the 

skills, personal attributes and qualifications to serve the public interest through 

the comprehensive external audit of the Western Australian public sector. This 

commitment enables the Auditor General to fulfil his mandate of improving public 

sector accountability and performance.

Audit staff have accounting, finance and business management qualifications whilst 

evaluation staff come from a number of disciplines including engineering, finance, 

economics and psychology. Some of our support staff have finance and computing 

qualifications including extensive work related experience.

Recruitment
To remain at the forefront of public sector audit and maintain its leadership in 

performance auditing, the Office endeavours to attract high-quality staff via 

innovative and timely recruitment processes. These include retaining a pool of 

suitable applicants for six months at the conclusion of each selection process. 

A comprehensive graduate recruitment process requires applicants to undergo 

aptitude and case study testing to ensure their suitability as an auditor.

The Office also offers prospective employees flexible working practices, including 

working from home and part-time working arrangements. Leave without pay 

opportunities are also considered, on a case by case basis, to enable staff 

to manage family responsibilities, and experience work in audit offices and 

accounting firms elsewhere in Australia and overseas.

Each year the Office undertakes a skills audit to identify any skills gaps and thus 

drive future recruitment strategies.  

Graduate Recruitment
The focus of the Office’s Graduate Development Program is to provide new 

graduates with a three-year structured path that enables them to become 

productive auditors, while at the same time giving them the fundamental skills and 

competencies to pursue careers that will take them to positions of leadership. The 

program aims to give graduates:

� an understanding of the principles and precedents of external auditing in the 

WA public sector

� a well-rounded experience of the Office of the Auditor General

� skills and competencies to perform the responsibilities associated with the 

position of graduate auditor

OUR PEOPLE

The Office has some 100 

staff with a variety of 

expertise and professional 

qualifications ...

... and extensive public 

sector and industry 

experience.

The Office uses innovative 

recruitment processes to 

attract high quality staff ...

... offers flexible working 

practices to enable staff to 

gain experience and skills 

... and balance their home 

and work life.

New graduates recruited 

to the Office have a 

structured development 

program to start them in 

their careers.

Managing the Offi ce
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� skills and competencies to enable progressive development to positions of 

leadership and management

� a healthy balance between professional and personal development.

In February 2004 the Office appointed five graduate auditors.

Equal Employment Opportunity (EEO) Programs 
and Initiatives
The male/female ratio at June 30, 2004 is 50/50. The Office’s five year EEO and 

Diversity Plan has underpinned a number of actions to support an environment that 

is harassment free and where people are treated with courtesy and respect. During 

2003-04 office wide training was carried out to raise staff awareness of their 

responsibilities in this regard.

Youth
The Office supports employment of young people and has an average age 

profile of 38 years. It has two school-based trainees who work two days per week 

in the Information Resource Branch. The traineeship has provided an excellent 

opportunity for the trainees to experience and learn in a working environment and 

proved a valuable resource to the Office.  

Indigenous Cadetship Program
The Office has three indigenous cadets on its staff, currently studying law and 

commerce. The cadets work at the Office during the summer semester in the 

Performance Review and Business and Strategic Services Divisions.

Disability Services Plan
A five-year Disability Services Plan is in place to ensure that individuals with 

a disability have access to the Office’s services, and in particular Reports to 

Parliament. The plan identifies objectives and strategies to overcome barriers to 

accessing the building and reading our Reports to Parliament.  

Work and Development Planning Tool
The Office’s 'Sharpen' work and development planning tool continues to evolve 

across divisions and has become the driving force in bringing together and linking 

individual and team objectives with the OAG’s ethos and objectives. It also drives 

development opportunities for individuals and yearly administrative compliance 

processes.

MANAGING THE OFFICE .... continued
Our People

The Office operates 

under a five-year Equal 

Opportunity and Diversity 

Plan ...

... with all staff regularly 

receiving EEO awareness 

training.

Young people are 

encouraged to join the 

Office, with traineeships 

offered...

... currently two school-

based trainees are working 

in Information Resources. 

An Indigenous cadetship 

program has operated for 

a number of years and this 

year three cadets are on 

staff.

A Disability Services Plan 

is in place, that identifies 

objectives and strategies 

to overcome barriers to 

accessing our building 

and reading our Reports to 

Parliament. 

Karen Schmidt is chairperson of the 
OAG's Office Consultative Committee.
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Employee Relations
Agency Specifi c Agreement (ASA) 2002
The Office’s ASA continues to provide a formal framework to administer and 

manage flexible working arrangements for staff. The arrangement enables the 

Office to maximise employee resources during peak periods, without incurring any 

overtime expenses. The arrangement supports the Office’s ongoing commitment 

to Government to reduce costs and increase productivity, whilst at the same time 

providing flexible working arrangements for staff. Through this, staff are able to 

clear accumulated leave during the Christmas break when the auditing cycle has 

been finalised.

Redeployment/Termination
Three staff were redeployed during the year and one staff member had their 

employment terminated.

Discipline
It was not necessary to apply any disciplinary procedures during 2003-04.

Industrial Relations
There were no industrial issues during the year. The Office provides a confidential 

counselling service via an Employee Assistance Program to assist staff to resolve 

personal or work related issues.

EMPLOYEE BY GENDER - AT JUNE 30, 2004
(Comparative figures for 2003 are in parenthesis)

Classification Female Male Total
Level 1 10 (11) 3 (6) 13 (17)
Level 2 11 (10) 3 (8) 14 (18)
Level 3 3 (3) 3 (3) 6 (6)
Level 4 11 (10) 7 (7) 18 (17)
Level 5 9 (7) 5 (4) 14 (11)
Level 6 8 (7) 11 (10) 19 (17)
Level 7 3 (3) 12 (10) 15 (13)
Level 8 2 (2) 7 (7) 9 (9)
Level 9 - - 3 (4) 3 (4)
Class 1 - - 2 (2) 2 (2)
Class 3 - - (1) (1)
Special - - 1 (1) 1 (1)
Total 57 (53) 57 (63) 114* (116)

EMPLOYEES BY BUSINESS UNIT 
AT JUNE 30, 2004

Auditor General’s Division 5

Assurance Services Division 52

Performance Review Division 14

Compliance, Control and 
Information System Audit 
Division

13

Standards and Quality Division 4

Business and Strategic Services 
Division

26

114*

* Currently 14 staff are on secondment, 
parental leave, study leave or leave without 
pay. Actual staffing was 97 full-time 
equivalents.

An agency specific 

agreement governs staff 

working arrangements ... 

helping to reduce costs 

and increase productivity.

No disciplinary problems 

or industrial relations 

issues were encountered 

during the year.
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Professional Development
The Office offers support to staff in acquiring post-graduate and professional 

qualifications, such as those from the Institute of Chartered Accountants, CPA 

Australia and the Information Systems Audit and Control Association.

This investment in professional development is also supported through offering 

external and internal training courses and seminars that assist staff to keep abreast 

of the changing environment.

Training has taken on a more structured approach in the last 12 months, with 

staff training and development needs being linked to the 'Sharpen' work and 

development process. Human Resources collates the information and arranges 

for staff to attend the appropriate courses. In-house training has been carried out 

in 2003-04 including Windows XP training and a comprehensive report and letter 

writing course designed specifically to improve the quality and effectiveness of 

writing techniques to achieve concise, clearer and more consistent audit reports.

The Office also supports staff in progressing postgraduate qualifications, CPA, PY 

and ISACA studies.

Human Resource Information Management System
The Human Resources Branch successfully upgraded its Human Resource 

Information Management Systems in June 2004. This new 'web kiosk' functionality 

enables staff to electronically apply for leave, view their leave balances, change 

their personal and bank details, and view their payslips.

Occupational Health and Safety
Wellness Program
During the year as part of its ongoing, highly successful wellness program the 

Office introduced a pedometer program for staff, with two Divisions participating. It 

also continued to raise health and fitness issues to reduce the risk of illness. 

Sick and carer’s leave usage was monitored and reviewed. The average sick leave 

usage per person for 2002-04 was slightly up on 2002-03 at six days.

Staff Turnover
Staff Turnover for the past three years has remained relatively constant. In 2001-02 

it was 15 per cent; 2002-03, 18 per cent, and in 2003-04, 14 percent.

A structured program of 

Professional Development 

enables staff to stay at the 

forefront of their vocation 

...

... internal and external 

training is provided ...

... and support given to 

the attainment of further 

qualifications.

The Office operates a 

long successful wellness 

program to assist in the 

health and fitness of its 

employees.

Staff turnover has 

remained constant in the 

past three years. 

MANAGING THE OFFICE .... continued
Our People
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Workers Compensation and Rehabilitation
The comparative indicator factors in the below table are those recommended by the State 

Government Insurance Commission for agencies to meet their reporting requirements. 

Factor 2001-02 2002-03 2003-04

Frequency Rate*

Number of LTI/D x 1 000 000
Total Hours Worked

5.32 5.5 5.29

Incidence Rate*

Number of LTI/D x 100      
Total Number of Employees

1.09 1.90 1.08

Average Lost Time Rate*

Number of Working Days Lost
Number of LTI/D

6 1 0

Estimated Cost of Claims per 
$100 Payroll

Estimated Cost of Claims Incurred x 100
Total Payroll

0.12 0.04 0.02

Premium Rate

Premium as a Percentage of Payroll

0.47 0.45 0.38

Rehabilitation Success Rate

Number of Rehabilitated Employees x 100
Number of Employees eligible for 
Rehabilitation

100% 100% 100%

* Journey and recess claims are excluded from these factors in conformity with National    
Occupational Safety data collection practice.

For many clients their first point of contact with the OAG are receptionists Janet Staley 
(left) and Jean Martin. Their friendly efficient service enables the needs of callers and 
visitors to be promptly attended to.
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Corporate Communication
The Communications Branch of the Business and Strategic Services Division 

has responsibility for corporate communications, the OAG website, publishing 

(electronic and paper-based), and report distribution. Primarily it provides the 

Auditor General with a range of editorial and communications services and 

strategies to ensure that both staff and external clients, such as the Parliament, 

public and media, are aware of Auditor General’s reports, and OAG policy, 

practice and operations. Core activity entails the production of high-standard, 

cost-effective quality reports and their subsequent distribution and publishing 

on the OAG website. An attendant communications strategy ensures the reports 

have broad reach and readership and that any media coverage is balanced and 

accurately reflects the key messages in the report.

During the year the Branch designed, coordinated, produced, and subsequently 

tabled in Parliament 12 Reports of the Auditor General and an Annual Report – the 

annual report winning a Silver Award for excellence in annual reporting in the 

national Australasian Annual Reporting Awards, a Gold Award for the best annual 

report in the WA general government sector, and the top prize in the WA public 

sector, the WS Lonnie Cup for Excellence in Annual Reporting (jointly with the 

Department of Fisheries). 

Media statements to accompany all reports were written and circulated to the 

print and electronic media and trade press, and the Branch responded to over 

200 media enquiries and numerous agency and public enquiries regarding those 

reports. Additionally, the Branch distributed in a timely manner over 3 000 paper-

based reports to a diverse client base and organisations and individuals locally, 

nationally and internationally. Most reports though were accessed through the 

OAG website with monthly hit rates ranging from 120 per month to 2 600 per 

month depending on the nature of the report.

The Branch also organised regular Office forums to enable open communication 

between staff and management on a range of strategic planning and workplace 

issues. It also arranged informal meetings between the Auditor General and key 

bodies, such as media cadets, to enhance communication channels and provide 

the opportunity for open discussion. Close and informative liaison was maintained 

between the Branch and key stakeholders in the success of its operations, including 

the Administrations of Parliament, Ministers’ Offices, Members of Parliament and 

their Electoral Offices, the Parliamentary Press Gallery, select individuals in the print 

and electronic media, key personnel in government agencies and private sector 

bodies, and counterparts in peer offices across the nation.

Highlight of the year for the Branch was the commissioning and subsequent 

production of a history of the WA Audit Office, celebrating 175 years of public 

COMMUNICATING WITH OUR 
STAKEHOLDERS AND THE PUBLIC

MANAGING THE OFFICE .... continued

Communicating with 
stakeholders and the public 
is an integral part of Office 
operations ...

... making stakeholders 
aware of the Auditor 
General's reports and 
the scope of the Office's 
operations.

The Office's Annual Report 
won a number of awards 
for excellence in Annual 
Reporting.

Reports of the Auditor 
General generated high 
interest from the media, 
agencies and the public ... 
with most accessed through 
the OAG website.

Open communication 
between management 
and staff, and the Office 
and key stakeholders was 
facilitated during the year. 

A highlight for the year 
was the production of a 
history of the Audit Office, 
celebrating 175 years of 
public sector audit in WA.

Managing the Offi ce
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sector audit in Western Australia. On completion, the history was electronically 

published on the OAG website and ‘launched’ at a special Office forum where 

past employees and eminent guests from the public and private sector shared 

their perceptions of the role of the Office over the years.

OAG Website Development and the Internet
Progressively throughout the year the OAG website was finetuned and enhanced 

to better serve our stakeholders. Innovations included:

� A ‘Useful Information for Agencies’ section – this section includes a number 

of the standard forms used by agencies as a part of the annual reporting 

process. The forms include Management Representation Letters, FAAA 

Checklists and IFRS Checklists and are in both Microsoft Word and Adobe 

PDF format for ease of use and download. This addition came as a result 

of a question from an agency internal auditor at a Principal Accounting 

Officers’ Forum last year. Feedback regarding this innovation has been 

highly positive.

� OAG History – the OAG Office History was prepared and uploaded in May 

for the 175th Anniversary celebrations. A full html version of the history was 

prepared, complete with images and special page formatting to ensure the 

screen version and printed version are almost identical. The History can also 

be burnt on to an auto-start CD Rom for distribution.

� Streaming Audio and Video – several software programs were added to 

allow download and conversion of digital video and audio into Windows 

Media format and RealPlayer format. This enabled the Office to stream 

audio and/or video over the Internet or on the OAG Intranet. 

� Conversion of  Audio and Video for use on PC or CD player – news 

coverage and interviews can now be watched or listened to on an Office 

PC, or the audio can be burned onto a CD Rom and then listened to on a 

standard CD player.

� Search Engine Submission – regular submission of the OAG website and 

Auditor General’s Reports to the major search engines continued. This 

ensured that OAG reports were made available to as wide an audience as 

possible.

� Expanded emailing list – The Office emailing list continued to grow with 

subscribers from across the world, including MPs, agencies, members 

of the public, students and media representatives. Subscribers receive a 

personalised email which includes the text of the summary card for a tabled 

report together with a link to the full report and media statement on the 

OAG website. Currently there are over 350 subscribers on the list.

The OAG website was 

enhanced during the year, 

with many innovations.

Colin Sims was one of many former employees 
invited to the OAG's 175th birthday celebrations 
and the 'launch' of the history of the WA Audit 
Office. Here he inspects a display off Office 
memorabilia and old photographs prepared for the 
occasion.

IT Support Officer Craig Schofield 
ensures that the OAG's website is always 
accessible to clients and functioning 
properly.
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The OAG website continues to be accessed by a large number of visitors from 

around the world. Below is a table of the top 10 downloads for this reporting 

period.

Enquiries and Complaints
The continuing change within the public sector and an increase in the diversity and 

currency of projects undertaken by the Office combined to bring greater public 

focus on accountability and performance issues, with the result that the range and 

number of enquiries on such issues received by the Auditor General from both 

Members of Parliament and the community again rose steadily throughout the year. 

As mentioned, 185 enquiries were received from the public and MPs. Protocols 

established across the Office ensured that these enquiries were dealt with promptly 

and appropriately and that a meaningful response was provided to the enquirer. 

Additionally, throughout the year our staff also responded to requests from regional 

and metropolitan agency clients for technical advice and assistance on financial 

reporting matters, performance indicator development, and issues of compliance 

and accountability.

MANAGING THE OFFICE .... continued
Communicating with our 
Stakeholders and the Public

Report 
No.

Report Title Downloads

11/2001 Life Matters: Management of Deliberate Self Harm in 
Young People

5 456

- Annual Report 2003 4 050

9/2002 Report on Ministerial Portfolios at November 29, 2002 3 082

- Preparing Performance Indicators - A Practical Guide 2 404

7/2001 Good Housekeeping: Facilities Management of 
Government Property and Buildings

2 348

5/1998 Listen and Learn – Using customer surveys to report 
performance in the Western Australian public sector

2 274

- Public Confidence in the Public Sector 
A paper by Associate Professor Neal Ryan  

2 196

1/1996 Improving Road Safety: Speed and Red Light Cameras 
- The Road Trauma Trust Fund

1 991

4/1996 Under Wraps - Performance Indicators of Western 
Australian Public Hospitals

1 977

9/2001 Righting the Wrongs: Complaints Management in the 
Western Australian Public Sector

1 967

The number of enquiries 
from the public and 
Members of Parliament 
rose during the year ... 

...as did requests from 
agency clients for technical 
advice and assistance on 
financial reporting matters.

Policy Officer Donald Allison was in the front line of 
handling enquiries and complaints to the Office in 
2003-04.
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Client Focus
Client focus is an integral part of evaluating and developing the Office’s approach 

to core business and the vehicle for aligning services and products to client 

needs and determining their success. The cornerstone of this strategy remains the 

Parliamentary Census, with support from both formal and informal client feedback. 

Our relationship with Parliament, our primary client, and public sector agencies 

has already been outlined in the earlier pages of this report. The results of this 

year’s Parliamentary Census are detailed at Page 19.

A survey of agencies, which was conducted every two years, has been replaced 

with a more direct and improved process of determining agency needs. This 

approach entails the Auditor General undertaking a series of structured meetings 

with selected agency CEOs to obtain feedback on the Office’s performance. 

Six CEOs were interviewed during the year. The feedback was positive and 

identified a number of issues that need to be considered. Overall, agencies were 

satisfied that the Office has a good understanding of their business and the risks 

they face. Equally, most were satisfied with the level of expertise and customer 

service demonstrated by OAG officers, and viewed the Office as being impartial, 

independent and providing confidence.

Leadership in Public Sector Audit
Auditor General Des Pearson was again at the forefront in presenting to a wider 

audience the role of public sector audit and its relevance. Within that context the 

Auditor General also outlined how through its public sector audit role his Office 

fulfilled its purpose of Serving the Public Interest. With the Office recognised by 

national and international observers as being at the leading-edge of public sector 

audit, Mr Pearson’s views on accountability, business ethics and public sector 

management issues were keenly sought. 

Presentations from the Auditor General were prepared for a number of public 

sector agencies and professional organisations including: 

� CPA National Public Sector Convention – ‘The Importance of Audit 

Independence for Public Sector Professionals’

� Department of Land Information – ‘An Accountability Perspective’

� Society of Consumer Affairs Professionals, Australia – ‘Listen and Learn to Right 

the Wrongs’

� Leadership Enhancement Program for senior executives across the public sector 

– ‘Current Accountability Issues in the Public Sector’

BUILDING OUR RELATIONSHIPS

Interaction and dialogue 

with our clients is an 

important element in 

the Office's quest for 

continuous improvement 

and in meeting client 

needs ...

... the Parliamentary 

Census being the 

prime vehicle for this ... 

supplemented by meetings 

with agency CEOs.

The Auditor General is at 

the forefront of presenting 

to a wider audience 

the role of public sector 

audit... 

... and his views on 

accountability and public 

sector issues are widely 

sought.

Managing the Offi ce
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� Association of Public Accounts Committees (APAC) Annual Conference, South 

Africa – ‘Partners in Transformation: the Western Australian Experience'

� South African Provincial Auditors-General – ‘Auditing Performance Indicators’

� IPAA Corporate Governance, Building Trust and Credibility Conference 

– ‘Corporate Governance, Risk and Public Confidence: Doing the right thing at 

the right time the first time’

� CPA Australia’s Annual Not-for-Profit Symposium – 'Ensuring organisational 

viability through competent financial management’

� Papua New Guinea Institute of Accountants, Public Sector Conference, Port 

Moresby – ‘Developments in Public Sector Auditing’

� Public Sector Orientation Briefing to Executive Directors and Directors, 

Corruption and Crime Commission – ‘Accountability and Reporting’

In addition to giving presentations the Auditor General regularly briefs and 

provides submissions to members of committees and their research staff, such as 

the :

� Public Accounts Committee

� Public Administration and Finance Committee

� Joint Committee on the Anti Corruption Commission

� Estimates and Finance Committee

� Joint Standing Committee on Delegated Legislation

Regional Assistance
Many of the Office’s clients are located in regional areas of Western Australia. 

Agencies include health services, colleges, port authorities, development 

commissions and water boards, in addition to regional offices of larger 

departments. 

During the annual audit process Office staff travel to all parts of the State to 

audit these regional clients. The Office also supports local economies by giving 

preference to regionally based accounting firms in the tender process for any out-

sourced regional audits. 

Expanding technologies are also providing these agencies with comparable levels 

of customer service as agencies located in the metropolitan area. The Internet and 

associated facilities has increased our clients’ accessibility to our staff and given 

them convenient and easy access to the Office’s reports and publications. 

MANAGING THE OFFICE .... continued
Building our Relationships

Office staff have regular 
direct contact with clients 
in regional Western 
Australia through the 
conduct of audits ...

... whilst expanding IT 
technologies have given 
these clients greater 
accessibility to staff 
expertise...

Auditor General Des Pearson was at the 
forefront in presenting to a wider audience the 
role of public sector audit and its relevance. 
His views on accountability, business ethics and 
public sector management issues were keenly 
sought.
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Agency Assistance
Staff responded to client queries on a range of public sector accountability issues 

including: 

� corporate governance matters

� public sector financial management and reporting 

� application of Australian Accounting Standards and Treasurer’s Instructions

� content and presentation of agency performance information

� compliance with State Supply Commission procurement guidelines.

Australasian Council of Auditors General (ACAG)
ACAG matters were again given a high priority by the Office, with ongoing 

involvement in a range of cross-jurisdiction public sector audit issues. The Office 

had responsibility for ACAG’s macrobenchmarking project. Other matters 

given consideration were the identification of current technical issues and the 

development of audit methodologies.

In addition, the Office provided responses on exposure drafts and discussion 

papers on accounting and auditing, and on a rotational basis coordinated the 

ACAG responses. During 2003-04 the Office responded to 22 drafts or papers 

and coordinated four.

Audit Committee Membership
Senior audit staff participated on over 36 of our clients’ audit committees 

throughout the year. Not only did this provide our staff with greater insight into our 

clients’ operations, but also OAG staff were able to provide advice and assistance 

directly to client management when issues arose. Staff responded to client queries 

on a range of public sector accountability issues including corporate governance, 

financial management and reporting, Australian Accounting Standards and 

Treasurer’s Instructions. 

Participation by Office staff on audit committees increases agency awareness of 

public sector accountability and reporting requirements and also promotes greater 

compliance with these requirements across the public sector. 

Professional Affi liations
Senior members of staff were actively involved in professional organisations such 

as the Public Sector Accountants Group, various committees of CPA Australia, 

the Australasian Evaluation Society, the Information Systems Audit and Controls 

Association, the Institute of Public Administration Australia, the Australasian Council 

... and across the public 

sector OAG staff routinely 

assist all agency clients on 

a range of accountability 

issues.

Involvement in the 

Australasian Council of 

Auditors General is a 

priority for the Office 

... with the OAG taking 

responsibility for a number 

of key projects.

Senior staff are 

represented on over 

36 of our clients' audit 

committees ...

... and involved in various 

capacities in a variety of 

professional organisations.
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of Auditors General Liaison Committee, the Legislation Review Board of AARF, the 

Business Law School Advisory Committee of Curtin University, and the Department 

of Premier and Cabinet’s Reference Group on Complaints Management. 

International Liaison
During the year the Office hosted senior public sector officials from China who 

were keen to observe our operations and discuss accountability and public sector 

audit issues. 

Visitors from the Anhui Province Public Administration Training Group came to the 

Office to gain insight and information on Australian auditing systems.

Peer Offi ce Liaison
In staying at the forefront of public sector audit, close liaison was maintained with 

peer audit offices in other States, not only on audit issues but covering such areas 

as communications, legislation, human resources and EEO practice. 

MANAGING THE OFFICE .... continued
Building our Relationships

The Office regularly hosts 
international visitors ...

... and routinely liaises with 
peer offices in other States 
on a range of audit and 
management issues.

A recent meeting of the Australasian Council of Auditors General. Left to right are Pat Barrett (AO), John Rosier (Executive Officer to 
ACAG), Kevin Brady (NZ), Des Pearson (WA), Len Scanlan (Qld), Bob Sendt (NSW), Arthur McHugh (retiring AG Tas), Mike Blake (AG NT, 
now Tas), Ken MacPherson (SA), Wayne Cameron (Vic).
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Summary
The following is a summary of the financial performance and position of the Office and trends from 2000 

through to the current period ended June 30, 2004. The summary is based on the information provided in the 

Office’s audited statements of financial performance and statements of financial position.

There are two notable developments which distinguish 2004 from prior years:

� First, to better demonstrate the Office’s role as Parliament’s auditor, commencing with 2003-04 audit fees 

will no longer be credited to the Office, rather they will be paid directly into the Consolidated Fund. The effect 

in 2003-04 is that Work in Progress valued at $1 184 000 is no longer taken up in the Office's accounts as 

income nor as a current asset in 2003-04.

� Second, there has been an increase in expenditure of $1 098 000 on salaries mainly due to leave 

adjustments, increased utilisation of in-house staff on cost effectiveness grounds and a non-recurring 

severance payment.

If 2003 figures were adjusted for these changes, there would be no material change in the underlying trends (as 

indicated in brackets).

2000
$’000

2001
$’000

2002
$’000

2003
$’000

2003
$’000

Adjusted

2004
$’000

Financial Performance
Total Income (a) 11 156 10 879 11 194 11 526 (10 282) 10 587
Total Expenditure 10 605 11 318 10 616 10 809 (11 329) 11 926
Net Cost of Services 7 145 8 217 7 166 7 352 (9 116) 9 770
Change in Net Assets 551 -439 578 717 (-1 047) -1 339

Financial Position
Total Assets 2 035 1 593 2 765 3 318 (2 074) 2 498
Total Liabilities 1 504 1 501 1 716 1 523 (1 913) 1 920
Employee Entitlements 1 037 1 048 1 293 1 093 (1 483) 1 468

Analytical Information
Operating Result to Total Income (b) 4.94% -4.04% -5.16% 6.22% (-10.18%) -12.65%
Current Ratio (c) 1.59 1.11 2.20 2.84 (1.19) 1.49
Debtor Turnover (d) 0.07 0.07 0.11 0.13 (0.03) 0.02

a. Total Income refers to Total Operating Revenues and Total Revenues from Government
b. The ratio of Change in Net Assets to Total Income
c. The ratio of Current Assets to Current Liabilities
d. The ratio of Receivables and Work in Progress to Total Income

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND PERFORMANCE INDICATORS .... continued

FINANCIAL OVERVIEW
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Financial Performance
The Office’s net cost of services has increased by 32 per cent ($9.7m:2004, $7.3m:2003). The increase 

is mainly attributable to an increase in salaries expense and a reduction in the revenue from audit fees 

due to the changed arrangements whereby audit fees, and as a consequence work in progress, is no 

longer recognised by the Office. 

Revenue
Revenue for the Office in 2003-04 includes $2 133 000 in fees collected from agencies that are not 

substantially funded from the Consolidated Fund relating to the 2002-03 audits. As noted above fees 

and work in progress related to 2003-04 audits have not been taken up in the Office’s accounts in 

2003-04. 

Expenditure
The largest expenditure item for the Office is salaries representing 55 per cent of the 2003-04 total 

cost of services. Total salaries has increased by $1 098 000 (20 per cent) during the financial year 

mainly due to an increase in leave liabilities of $375 000, an increased utilisation of in-house staff 

on cost effectiveness grounds and a non-recurring severance payment. Private Sector Audit contract 

payments correspondingly decreased by 12.9 per cent ($309 000) due to the shift to in-house staff 

utilisation. Other operating expenses increased by $328 000 (11.2 per cent) largely driven by increased 

accommodation costs following expiration of a rent free period.

Figure 2 presents trends in the total cost of services highlighting salaries, private sector audit contracts 

and other expenditures over a five-year period.

Figure 1: Revenues, Expenses 
and Net Cost of Services

2000 2001 2002 2003 2004

Revenues 3 460 3 101 3 450 3 457 2 156

Expenses 10 605 11 318 10 616 10 809 11 926

Net Cost of 
Services

7 145 8 217 7 166 7 352 9 770
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� Revenues � Expenses � Net Cost of Services

2000 2001 2002 2003 2004

Salaries 5 528 5 806 5 664 5 483 6 581

Other 3 008 3 571 2 862 2 937 3 265

Private Sector 
Contracts

2 069 1 941 2 090 2 389 2 080

$’000
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4 000
3 000
2 000
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0
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Figure 2: Expenditure � Salaries � Other � Private Sector Contracts
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Financial Position
The Statement of Financial Position provides information on the Office’s assets and liabilities, which show a 

reasonably constant trend recognising the proportion of Information Technology assets with short useful life 

cycles and the steady escalation of employee entitlements associated with wage levels and the shift to a higher 

proportion of staff. Figure 3 provides an overview of the assets and liabilities position of the Office.

The net assets represents the State’s residual interest in the assets of the Office after deducting the probable call 

on these resources, represented by liabilities. This position has decreased significantly by $1 217 000 (67.8 per 

cent) during the financial year mainly due to a decrease in Receivables (work in progress to June 30), an increase 

in Cash and Restricted Cash Assets, a decrease in Furniture and Equipment and an increase in Provisions 

(increase in employee benefit liabilities).

Assets
The Office’s asset holdings comprise mainly of Cash and Restricted Cash Assets (36 per cent) and Property, Plant 

and Equipment (34 per cent) as shown in Figure 4.

 Figure 3: Financial Position

2000 2001 2002 2003 2004

Assets 2 035 1 593 2 765 3 381 2 498

Liabilities 1 504 1 501 1 716 1 523 1 920

Net Assets 531 92 1 049 1 795 578

� Assets � Liabilities � Net Assets
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2 500
2 000
1 500
1 000

500
0

 2000 2001 2002 2003 2004

�

�

�

�

�

2003
$’000

2003
%

2004
$’000

2004
%

Cash Assets 96 3 653 26

Restricted Cash Assets 207 6 256 10

Receivables 1 551 46 177 7

Property, Plant and 
Equipment

913 28 847 34

Other 186 6 215 9

Amounts Receivable 
for Outputs

365 11 350 14

Cash Assets
26%

Restricted 
Cash Assets 

10%

Receivables 
7%

Property, Plant 
and Equipment 

34%

Other 
9%

Amounts Receivable 
for Outputs 

14%

 Figure 4: Asset Categories

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND PERFORMANCE INDICATORS .... continued
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Liabilities
The liabilities of the Office comprise mainly of provisions for employee benefits, Private Audit Contracts in 

Progress, payables and accrued salaries. The major component of the Office’s liabilities for the 2004 financial 

year (76.4 per cent) relate to employee entitlements. Employee entitlements which consist of annual and long 

service leave and associated on-costs have increased by $375 000 (34.3 per cent) including an adjustment 

amount of $390 000 during the 2003-04 financial year.

Superannuation is an expense and therefore does not feature in the Statement of Financial Position. However, it 

is depicted below to provide an overall analysis of the trend in employee related costs and entitlements over the 

years.

2000 2001 2002 2003 2004

Annual/Long 
Service Leave

1 037 1 048 1 293 1 093 1 468

Superannuation 
Expense

533 542 567 688 692

Average FTEs 96 102 92 93 97

� Annual/Long Service � Superannuation Expense � Average FTEs

$’000
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 Figure 5: Employee Entitlements
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OFFICE OF THE AUDITOR GENERAL

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

CERTIFICATION OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2004

The accompanying financial statements of the Office of the Auditor General have been prepared in compliance 

with the provisions of the Financial Administration and Audit Act 1985 from proper accounts and records to 

present fairly the financial transactions for the financial year ending June 30, 2004 and the financial position at 

June 30, 2004.

At the date of signing we are not aware of any circumstances which would render any particulars included in the 

financial statements misleading or inaccurate.

D D R PEARSON

ACCOUNTABLE OFFICER

August 25, 2004

P WILKINS 

PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING OFFICER

August 25, 2004
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 OFFICE OF THE AUDITOR GENERAL 
 
STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2004 

 
 

 
 
COST OF SERVICES Note 2 004 2003  

$'000 $'000  
Expenses from ordinary activities

Employee expenses 4 7 273 6 171
Supplies and services 5 2 486 2 866
Depreciation expense 6  336  330
Administration expenses 7 1 111  957
Accommodation expenses 8  554  387
Capital User Charge 9  166  91
Costs of disposal of non-current assets  0  7

Total cost of services 11 926 10 809

Revenues from ordinary activities
Revenue from operating activities
User charges and fees 10 2 133 3 394
Revenue from non-operating activities
Other revenues from ordinary activities 11  22  42
Proceeds from disposal of non-current assets  1  21

Total revenues from ordinary activities 2 156 3 457

NET COST OF SERVICES 9 770 7 352

REVENUES FROM STATE GOVERNMENT 12
Output Appropriation 8 336 7 950
Liabilities assumed by the Treasurer  66  110
Resources received free of charge  29  9

Total revenues from State Government 8 431 8 069

CHANGE IN NET ASSETS (1 339)  717

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
The Statement of Financial Performance should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes. 
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 OFFICE OF THE AUDITOR GENERAL 
 
STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION 
AT JUNE 30, 2004 

 
 

 
 
 

Note 2 004 2003  
$'000  $'000  

Current Assets
Cash assets 20(a)  653  96
Restricted cash assets 13  256  207
Receivables 14  177 1 551
Amounts receivable for outputs 15  350  365
Other assets  215  186

Total Current Assets 1 651 2 405

Non Current Assets
Furniture and Equipment 16  847  913

Total Non-Current Assets  847  913

TOTAL ASSETS 2 498 3 318

Current Liabilities
Payables  65  120
Provisions 17  656  417
Other liabilities 18  387  310

Total Current Liabilities 1 108  847

Non-Current Liabilities
Provisions 17  812  676

Total Non-Current Liabilities  812  676

TOTAL LIABILITIES 1 920 1 523

Equity 19
Contributed equity  530  408
Accumulated surplus / (deficiency)  48 1 387

TOTAL EQUITY 19  578 1 795

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND EQUITY 2 498 3 318  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
The Statement of Financial Position should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes. 



AUDITOR GENERAL WA – ANNUAL REPORT 2003-04     61 

 OFFICE OF THE AUDITOR GENERAL 
 
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2004 

 
 

 
 
 
 

Note 2 004 2003  
Inflows Inflows

(Outflows) (Outflows)
$'000  $'000  

CASH FLOWS FROM STATE GOVERNMENT
Output appropriations 7 986 7 585
Capital contributions  122  29
Holding account drawdowns  365  379

Net cash provided by State Government 8 473 7 993

Utilised as follows:
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Payments

Employee costs (6 350) (5 941)
Superannuation ( 610) ( 584)
Supplies and services (2 603) (2 896)
Capital User Charge ( 166) ( 91)
GST payments on purchases ( 401) ( 432)
GST payments to taxation authority ( 19) ( 55)
Other payments (1 367) (1 136)

Receipts
User charges and fees 3 456 3 137
GST receipts on sales  333  317
GST receipts from taxation authority  108  147
Other receipts  22  41

Net cash provided by / (used in) operating activities 20 (7 597) (7 493)

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Proceeds from sale of non-current physical assets  1  21
Purchase of non-current physical assets ( 271) ( 630)

Net cash provided by/ (used in) from investing activities ( 270) ( 609)

Net increase / (decrease) in cash held  606 ( 109)
Cash assets at the beginning of the financial year  303  412
CASH ASSETS AT THE END OF THE FINANCIAL YEAR  909  303  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
The Statement of Cash Flows should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes. 
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 OFFICE OF THE AUDITOR GENERAL 
 
SUMMARY OF CONSOLIDATED FUND APPROPRIATIONS AND  
REVENUE ESTIMATES 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2004 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 

2 004 2 004 2 004 2 003
Estimate Actual Variance Actual Actual Variance

$'000  $'000  $'000  $'000  $'000  $'000  

PURCHASE OF OUTPUTS

Item 41 Net amount appropriated to deliver outputs 7 942 8 114 ( 172) 8 114 7 752  362

Amount Authorised by Other Statutes
Financial Administration and Audit Act 1985 (FAAA)  208  222 ( 14)  222  198  24

Total appropriations provided to deliver outputs 8 150 8 336 ( 186) 8 336 7 950  386

CAPITAL

Item 129 Capital Contribution  122  122  0  122  29  93

GRAND TOTAL OF APPROPRIATIONS 8 272 8 458 ( 186) 8 458 7 979  479

Details Of Expenses by Outputs
Performance Auditing 11 211 11 926 ( 715) 11 926 10 809 1 117
Total Cost of Output 11 211 11 926 ( 715) 11 926 10 809 1 117
Less total revenues from ordinary activities (3 054) (2 156) ( 898) (2 156) (3 457) 1 301
Net Cost of Outputs 8 157 9 770 (1 613) 9 770 7 352 2 418
Adjustments (I) ( 7) (1 434) 1 427 (1 434)  598 (2 032)

Total appropriations provided to deliver outputs 8 150 8 336 ( 186) 8 336 7 950  386

Capital Expenditure
Purchase of non-current physical assets  487  271  216  271  630 ( 359)
Adjustment for other funding sources ( 365) ( 149) ( 216) ( 149) ( 601)  452
Capital Contributions (appropriation)  122  122  0  122  29  93

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

(I) Adjustments are related to movements in cash balances and other accrual items such as receivables, payables and 
superannuation. 

 
 
The Summary of Consolidated Fund Appropriations, Variance to Budget and Actual should be read in conjunction 
with the accompanying notes. 
 
This Summary provides the basis for the Explanatory Statement information requirements of Treasurer’s Instruction 
945, set out in Note 28. 
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OFFICE OF THE AUDITOR GENERAL 
 
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS  
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2004 
 
   
1 OFFICE MISSION AND FUNDING 
 
 The Office of the Auditor General’s mission, through Performance Auditing, is to enable the Auditor General to 

serve the public interest by communicating to Parliament independent and impartial information regarding public 
sector accountability and performance. 

The Office is predominantly funded by Parliamentary appropriation. The Financial Administration and Audit (Net 
Appropriations) Determination 1999 made by the Treasurer under section 23A of the Financial Administration and 
Audit Act 1985 (FAAA), applies to all revenues received by this Office. Revenues mainly comprise audit fees raised 
under provisions of the Financial Administration and Audit Act 1985.  

The Auditor General determines whether a fee is to be charged and the amount of that fee. Fees are calculated to 
notionally recover the full cost to the State of the audit service provided. No fee is payable by any department or 
authority operating directly on the Consolidated Fund or substantially financed from that Fund, except with the 
approval of the Treasurer. 

   
2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 
 
 The following accounting policies have been adopted in the preparation of the financial statements. These policies 

are consistent with those adopted in the previous year with the exception of revenue recognition (refer to 2(l) 
below).  
 

General Statement 
 
 The financial statements constitute a general purpose financial report which has been prepared in accordance 

with Australian Accounting Standards, Statement of Accounting Concepts and other authoritative 
pronouncements of the Australian Accounting Standards Board, and Urgent Issues Group (UIG) Consensus 
Views as applied by the Treasurer’s Instructions. Several of these are modified by the Treasurer’s Instructions to 
vary the application, disclosure, format and wording. The Financial Administration and Audit Act 1985 and the 
Treasurer’s Instructions are legislative provisions governing the preparation of the financial statements and take 
precedence over Australian Accounting Standards, Statement of Accounting Concepts and other authoritative 
pronouncements of the Australian Accounting Standards Board, and UIG Consensus Views. The modifications 
are intended to fulfil the requirements of general application to the public sector, together with the need for 
greater disclosure and also to satisfy accountability requirements.  

If any such modification has a material or significant financial effect upon the reported results, details of that 
modification and where practicable, the resulting financial effect, are disclosed in individual notes to these 
financial statements. 

 
Basis of Accounting 
 
 The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with Australian Accounting Standard AAS 29. 

The statements have been prepared on the accrual basis of accounting using the historical cost convention. 
  
(a) Output Appropriations 
 

Output Appropriations are recognised as revenues in the period in which the Office gains control of the 
appropriated funds. The Office gains control of appropriated funds at the time those funds are deposited into 
the Office’s bank account or credited to the holding account held at the Department of Treasury and Finance. 
Refer to note 12 for further commentary on output appropriations. 
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2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES contd 
 
(b) Contributed Equity 
 

Under UIG 38 “Contributions by Owners Made to Wholly-Owned Public Sector Entities” transfers in the nature 
of equity contributions must be designated by the Government (owners) as contributions by owners (at the time 
of, or prior to transfer) before such transfers can be recognised as equity contributions in the financial 
statements. Capital contributions (appropriations) have been designated as contributions by owners and have 
been credited directly to Contributed Equity in the Statement of Financial Position. Refer to Note 12 for further 
commentary on the application of UIG 38 and TI 955. 

 
 
(c) Net Appropriation Determination 
 

Pursuant to section 23A of the Financial Administration and Audit Act, the net appropriation determination by the 
Treasurer provides for retention of the following moneys received by the Office: 

• Proceeds from Audit Fees and Charges 
• Other Revenue 

Retained revenues may only be applied to the outputs specified in the 2003-2004 Budget Statements. 

Details of retained revenues are disclosed in the Summary of Consolidated Fund Appropriations and Revenue 
Estimates. 

 
  
(d) Acquisition of Assets 
 

The cost method of accounting is used for all acquisitions of assets. Cost is measured as the fair value of the 
assets given up or liabilities undertaken at the date of acquisition plus incidental costs directly attributable to the 
acquisition.  

 
  
(e) Depreciation of Non-current Assets 
 

All non-current assets having a limited useful life are systematically depreciated over their estimated useful lives 
in a manner which reflects the consumption of their future economic benefits. 

Depreciation is calculated on the straight-line basis, using rates which are reviewed annually. Expected useful 
lives for each class of depreciable asset are: 

Asset category         Life (years) 

Computer equipment   3 

Office equipment, furniture & fittings  10 
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2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES contd 
 
(f) Employee Benefits 
 

Annual leave 

This benefit is recognised at the reporting date in respect to employees’ services up to that date and is measured 
at the nominal amounts expected to be paid when the liabilities are settled.  

Long service leave 

The liability for long service leave expected to be settled within 12 months of the reporting date is recognised in 
the provisions for employee benefits and is measured at the nominal amounts expected to be paid when the 
liability is settled. The liability for long service leave expected to be settled more than 12 months from the 
reporting date is recognised in the provisions for employee benefits and is measured at the present value of 
expected future payments to be made in respect of services provided by employees up to the reporting date. 
Consideration is given, when assessing expected future payments, to expected future wage and salary levels 
including relevant on-costs, experience of employee departures and periods of service. Expected future payments 
are discounted using market yields at the reporting date on national government bonds with terms to maturity 
and currency that match, as closely as possible, the estimated future cash outflows. 

Superannuation 

Staff may contribute to the Pension Scheme, a defined benefits pension scheme now closed to new members, or 
to the Gold State Superannuation Scheme, a defined benefit lump sum scheme now also closed to new 
members. All staff who do not contribute to either of these schemes become non contributory members of the 
West State Superannuation Scheme, an accumulation fund complying with the Commonwealth Government’s 
Superannuation Guarantee (Administration) Act 1992. All of theses schemes are administered by the 
Government Employees Superannuation Board (GESB). 

The superannuation expense comprises the following elements: 

(i) change in the unfunded employer’s liability in respect of current employees who are members of the 
Pension Scheme and current employees who accrued a benefit on transfer from that Scheme to the Gold 
State Superannuation Scheme 

(ii) employer contributions paid to the Gold State Superannuation Scheme and West State Superannuation 
Scheme. 

The superannuation expense does not include payment of pensions to retirees, as this does not constitute part of 
the cost of services provided by the Office in the current year. 

A revenue “Liabilities assumed by the Treasurer” equivalent to (i) is recognised under Revenues from State 
Government in the Statement of Financial Performance as the unfunded liability is assumed by the Treasurer. The 
GESB makes the benefit payments and is recouped by the Treasurer. 

The Office is funded for employer contributions in respect of the Gold State Superannuation Scheme and the 
West State Superannuation Scheme. These contributions were paid to the GESB during the year. The GESB 
subsequently paid the employer contributions in respect of the Gold State Superannuation Scheme to the 
Consolidated Fund.   

Employee benefit on-costs 

Employee benefit on-costs are recognised and included in employee benefit liabilities and costs when the 
employee benefits to which they relate are recognised as liabilities and expenses. (See note 4 and 17). 

 
 
(g) Leases 
 
 The Office has entered into a number of operating lease arrangements for accommodation, certain equipment 

and motor vehicles. The lessors effectively retain all of the risks and benefits incident to ownership of the items 
held under the operating lease. Equal instalments of the lease payments are charged to the Statement of 
Financial Performance over the lease term as this is representative of the pattern of benefits to be derived from 
the leased items. 
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2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES contd 
 
(h) Cash 
 
 For the purpose of the Statement of Cash Flows, cash includes cash assets and restricted cash assets. 

 
(i) Receivables 
 

Receivables are recognised at the amounts receivable as they are due for settlement no more than 30 days from 
the date of recognition. 

Collectability of receivables is reviewed on an ongoing basis. Debts which are known to be uncollectable are 
written off. A provision for doubtful debts is raised where some doubts as to collection exists and in any event 
where the debt is more than 60 days overdue. 
 

(j) Payables 
 

Payables, including accruals not yet billed, are recognised when the Office becomes obliged to make future 
payments as a result of a purchase of assets or services. Payables are generally settled within 30 days. 

(k) Accrued Salaries 
 

The accrued salaries suspense account (refer note 13) consists of amounts paid annually into a suspense 
account over a period of 10 financial years to largely meet the additional cash outflow in each eleventh year 
when 27 pay days occur in that year instead of the normal 26. No interest is received on this account. 

Accrued salaries (refer note 18) represent the amount due to staff but unpaid at the end of the financial year, as 
the end of the last pay period for that financial year does not coincide with the end of the financial year. Accrued 
salaries are settled within a few days of the financial year end. The Office considers the carrying amount of 
accrued salaries to be equivalent to the net fair value. 

 
(l) Revenue Recognition 
 

Audit fees for the 2002-03 audits are recognised in accordance with the percentage of the audit completed. The 
percentage of the audit completed is measured by reference to labour hours incurred to date as a percentage of 
the estimated total hours. 

Audit fees for the 2003-04 audits are not recognised as revenues due to changed arrangements whereby all 
audit fees collected by the Office shall be paid directly into the Consolidated Fund (ie Administered transactions). 
Refer to Note 10 for further commentary on this change in accounting policy. 
 

(m) Resources Received Free of Charge or For Nominal Value 
  

Resources received free of charge or for nominal value which can be reliably measured are recognised as 
revenues and as assets or expenses as appropriate at fair value. 
 

(n) Comparative Figures 
 

Comparative figures are, where appropriate, reclassified so as to be comparable with the figures presented in 
the current financial year. 
 

(o) Rounding of Amounts 
 

Amounts in the financial statements have been rounded to the nearest thousand dollars. 
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3 OUTPUT OF THE OFFICE OF THE AUDITOR GENERAL 
 
 

The Office’s output and its description is: 
 

Output 1: Performance Auditing 

The Auditor General is responsible for undertaking the external audit of the Western Australian public sector. 
This is done through audits of controls, financial statements and performance indicators, examinations of 
efficiency and effectiveness and the tabling of reports to Parliament.  

   
4 EMPLOYEE EXPENSES 
  

2 004 2003  
$'000  $'000  

Salaries 6 050 5 650
Superannuation  692  688
Other related expenses (i)  531 ( 167)

7 273 6 171
 

 
 
(i) These employee expenses include superannuation, workers compensation premiums and other employee on-

costs associated with the recognition of annual and long service leave liability. The related on-costs liability is 
included in employee benefit liabilities at Note 17.  

   
5 SUPPLIES AND SERVICES 
  

2 004 2003  
$'000  $'000  

Private sector audit contracts 2 080 2 389
Services and contracts  249  292
Repairs and maintenance  157  185

2 486 2 866
 

 
   
6 DEPRECIATION EXPENSE 
  

2 004 2003  
$'000  $'000  

Furniture  23  6
Office and computer equipment  313  324

 336  330
 

 
7 ADMINISTRATION EXPENSES 
 
 2 004 2003  

$'000  $'000  
Administration  447  329
Other staffing costs  310  239
Communications  66  61
Advertising  23  24
Consumables  154  176
Lease expenses  100  119
Other  11  9

1 111  957
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8 ACCOMMODATION EXPENSES 
  

2 004 2003  
$'000  $'000  

Office rent  328  169
Office parking  55  49
Monthly Outgoings  171  169

 554  387
 

 
9 CAPITAL USER CHARGE 
  

2 004 2003  
$'000  $'000  

Capital user charge  166  91
 

 
 

 A capital user charge rate of eight per cent has been set by the Government for and represents the opportunity 
cost of capital invested in the net assets of the Office used in the provision of outputs. The charge is calculated 
on the net assets adjusted to take account of exempt assets. Payments are made to the Department of Treasury 
and Finance on a quarterly basis. 
 

10 USER CHARGES AND FEES 
 
 2 004 2003  

$'000  $'000  
Fees for audit services during the year 2 133 3 394

2 133 3 394
 

 
Change in Accounting Policy for the Recognition of Audit Fees 
The Office has changed its accounting policy in regard to the recognition of audit fees due to changed 
arrangements whereby all audit fees collected by the Office shall be paid directly into the Consolidated Fund 
commencing with the 2003-04 audits. 
 
The financial effect of this change in accounting policy is not to recognise any audit fees or work in progress for 
the 2003-04 audits as revenue in the net cost of services for the 2003-04 financial year. For comparative 
purposes, the 2003 balances have been restated below to reflect the financial effect of the new accounting 
policy had that policy been applied for that financial year: 
 2003 
 $’000 
 Restated 

Fees for audit services 2 150 
Net cost of services 8 596 
Change in net assets (527) 
Receivables 307 
Total assets 2 074 

 
   
11 OTHER REVENUES FROM ORDINARY ACTIVITIES 
  

2 004 2003  
$'000  $'000  

Contributions for the use of motor vehicles  16  19
Miscellaneous  6  23

 22  42
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12 REVENUES FROM STATE GOVERNMENT 

 
  

 
2 004 2003  
$'000  $'000  

Appropriation revenue received during the year:
Output appropriations (I) 8 336 7 950

The following liabilities have been assumed by the Treasurer
during the financial year: 
- Superannuation (II)  66  110
Total liabilities assumed by the Treasurer  66  110

Resources received free of charge (III)
Determined on the basis of the following estimates
provided by agencies:
Crown Solicitor's Office  29  9

 29  9

8 431 8 069
 

 
 
(I) Output appropriations are accrual amounts reflecting the full cost of outputs delivered. The 

appropriation revenue comprises a cash component and a receivable (asset). The receivable (holding 
account) comprises the depreciation expense for the year and any agreed increase in leave liability 
during the year. 

(II) The assumption of the superannuation liability by the Treasurer is only a notional revenue to offset the 
notional superannuation expense reported in respect of current employees who are members of the 
pension scheme and current employees who have a transfer benefit entitlement under the Gold State 
scheme. 

(III) Where assets or services have been received free of charge or for nominal consideration, the Office 
recognises revenues (except where the contributions of assets or services are in the nature of 
contributions by owners in which case the Office shall make a direct adjustment to equity) equivalent 
to the fair value of the assets and/or the fair value of those services that can be reliably determined 
and which would have been purchased if not donated, and those fair values shall be recognised as 
assets or expenses, as applicable. 

 
   
13 RESTRICTED CASH ASSETS 

 
  

2 004 2003  
$'000  $'000  

Accrued salaries suspense account  256  207  
 

  
Amount held in the suspense account is only to be used for the purpose of meeting the 27th pay in a financial 
year that occurs every 11 years. 
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14 RECEIVABLES 
  

2 004 2003  
$'000  $'000  

Receivables for services supplied  93  292
Work in Progress - Audit Fees  0 1 244
Other Debtors
Less: provision for doubtful debts  0  0
GST Receivable  84  15

 177 1 551
 

 
 

   
15 AMOUNTS RECEIVABLE FOR OUTPUTS 
  

2 004 2003  
$'000  $'000  

Amounts received for outputs  350  365
 

 
 
This asset represents the non-cash component of output appropriations. It is restricted in that it can only be used 
for asset replacement or payment of leave liability.  
 

   
16 FURNITURE AND EQUIPMENT 
 
 2 004 2003  

$'000  $'000  
FURNITURE & FITTINGS
at Cost  244  247
Accumulated depreciation ( 35) ( 21)

 209  226

OFFICE & COMPUTER EQUIPMENT
at Cost 1 605 1 347
Accumulated depreciation ( 967) ( 660)

 638  687

 847  913
 

 
Reconciliations 
Reconciliation of the carrying amounts of Office and Computer Equipment and Furniture and Fittings at the 
beginning and end of the current financial year are set out below: 

Furniture
Office and 
Computer 
Equipment

Total

$'000 $'000 $'000
Carrying amount at start of year   226   687   913
Additions   7   264   271
Disposals   0   0   0
Depreciation (  23) (  313) (  336)
Carrying amount at end of year   210   638   848  
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17 PROVISIONS 
  

2 004 2003  
$'000  $'000  

Current
Annual leave  427  300
Long service leave  229  117

 656  417

2 004 2003  
$'000  $'000  

Non-Current
Long service leave  812  676

 812  676  
 
 
 
The settlement of annual and long service leave liabilities gives rise to the payment of employment on-costs 
including superannuation and workers compensation premiums. The liability for such on-costs is included here. 
The associated expense is included under Other related expenses (under Employee expenses) at Note 4. 
 
The Office considers the carrying amount of employee benefits to approximate the net fair value. 
 
Employee Benefit Liabilities 
The aggregate employee benefit liability recognised and included in the financial statements is as follows: 
 
 

2 004 2003  
$'000  $'000  

Provision for employee benefits
Current  656  417
Non-Current  812  676

1 468 1 093  
 
 
In determining the present value of long service leave employee benefits, a Treasury Fixed Coupon Bond with a 
yield of 5.78 per cent was used. 

 
 
18 OTHER LIABILITIES 

 
  

 
2 004 2003  
$'000  $'000  

Work in Progress - Contractor payments  97  142
Accrued Salaries  290  168

 387  310  
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19 EQUITY 
 
 

Equity represents the residual interest in the net assets of the Office. The Government holds the equity interest 
in the Office on behalf of the community. 
 
 
 

2 004 2003  
$'000  $'000  

CONTRIBUTED EQUITY
Opening balance  408  379
Capital contribution (I)  122  29
Closing balance  530  408

 
 
 
 
 
 
(I) Capital Contributions have been designated as contributions by owners and are credited directly to 

equity in the Statement of Financial Position. 
 
 
 
 

2 004 2003  
$'000  $'000  

ACCUMULATED SURPLUS/(DEFICIENCY)
Opening balance 1 387  670
Change in net assets from operations (1 339)  717
Closing balance  48 1 387
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20 NOTES TO THE STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS 
 

(a) Reconciliation of cash 

Cash at the end of the financial year as shown in the Statement of Cash Flows is reconciled to the related items 
in the Statement of Financial Position as follows: 
 

2 004 2003  
$'000  $'000  

Cash assets  653  96
Restricted cash assets (refer to note 13)  0  0

 653  96
 

 
 
(b) Reconciliation of net cost of services to net cash flows provided by /(used in) operating activities 
 
 

2 004 2003  
$'000  $'000  

Net cost of services (9 770) (7 351)

Non-cash items:
Depreciation  336  330
Liabilities assumed by the Treasurer  66  110
Resources received free of charge  29  9
Net (Profit)/Loss on sale of non-current assets ( 1)  14

(Increase)/decrease in assets:
Current receivables (III) 1 330 ( 347)
Other current assets ( 29) ( 44)

Increase/(decrease) in liabilities:
Current payables (III) ( 55) ( 3)
Current provisions  239 ( 131)

Other current liabilities  77  10
Non-current provisions  136 ( 69)

Net GST (receipts)/payments (I) ( 21) ( 247)
Change in GST in receivables/payables (II)  66  227

Net cash provided by/(used in) operating activities (7 597) (7 493)
 

 
 
 
(I) This is the net GST paid/received, ie. cash transactions. 
(II) This reverses out the GST in receivables and payables.  
(III) Note that ATO receivable/payable in respect of GST and receivable / payable in respect of the sale 

/ purchase of non-current assets are not included in these items as they are not reconciling items. 
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21 COMMITMENTS FOR EXPENDITURE 

 
 
 At the reporting date, contracts were in force for the following commitments: 

 
2 004 2003  
$'000  $'000  

Private Sector Contracts
These commitments are due for payment:

Within one year 1 732 1 242
Later than one year but not later than five years  894  516
Later than five years  0  0

2 626 1 758

Operating Lease Commitments
These commitments are due for payment:

Within one year  464  461
Later than one year but not later than five years 1 600 1 628
Later than five years 1 252 1 647

3 316 3 736
 

 
These commitments are all inclusive of GST. 
 

   
22 REMUNERATION OF SENIOR OFFICERS 
 

Senior Officers are classified as those members of Corporate Executive. 

The number of senior officers, whose total of fees, salaries, superannuation and other benefits for the financial 
year, fall within the following bands are: 

 
 

2 004 2003  
     $'000  $'000  

$0 - $10 000  1  0
$10 001 - 20 000  0  1
$20 001 - 30 000  0  1
$70 001 - 80 000  0  1

$90 001 - 100 000  0  1
$100 001 - 110 000  1  0
$110 001 - 120 000  1  1
$120 001 - 130 000  2  1
$130 001 - 140 000  0  1
$140 001 - 150 000  1  0
$220 001 - 230 000  1 *  0
$240 001 - 250 000  0  1
$260 001 - 270 000  1  0

The total remuneration of senior officers is: 1 105  832
 

 
* Includes a retirement payment. 
 
The superannuation included here represents the superannuation expense incurred by the Office in respect of 
senior officers. 
 
No senior officers are members of the Pension Scheme. 
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23 AUDITOR'S REMUNERATION 
 
 

 
2 004 2003  
$'000  $'000  

An independent auditor is appointed by the Governer under
section 81 (2) of the FAAA (1985) to audit the accounts of

the Office with the fee being paid by this Office  10  11
 

 
 

 
24 RESOURCES PROVIDED FREE OF CHARGE 
 
 

 
2 004 2003  
$'000  $'000  

During the year, audit services were provided free of charge
to Departments and Authorities operating directly from the
Consolidated Fund or substantially financed from that 
Fund.  The agencies include all Departments, Hospitals and
those Statutory Authorities marked with an asterisk listed
in Appendix 1 in the Report on Operations. 5 889 5 272

 
 
 
 

   
25 EVENTS OCCURING AFTER BALANCE DATE 
 
 

 
Nil 

   
26 RELATED BODIES 
 
 

 
Nil 

   
27 AFFILIATED BODIES 
 
 

 
Nil 
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28 EXPLANATORY STATEMENT 

 
 
 The Summary of Consolidated Fund Appropriations and Revenue Estimates discloses appropriations and other 

statutes expenditure estimates, the actual expenditures made and revenue estimates and payments into the 
Consolidated Fund. Appropriations are now on an accrual basis. 

The following explanations are provided in accordance with Treasurer’s Instruction 945. 

Significant variations are considered to be those greater than 10 per cent or $280 000. 
 

  
 (i) Significant variances between estimate and actual – Total appropriation to deliver outputs: 

 
There was no significant variation in the total appropriation. 
 
The increase in the total cost of the output ‘Performance Auditing’ is mainly attributable to supplementary 
funding for the capital user charge and the administration of the public interest disclosure legislation (see 
supplementary funding below), a non-recurring severance payment and an increase in the Office leave 
provisions. 
 

  
 (ii) Significant variances between actual and prior year actual – Total appropriation to deliver outputs.  

        
 2004   2003 
$’000    $’000 

Item 41 Net amount appropriated to deliver outputs    8 336     7 950 
Total cost of output ‘Performance Auditing’   11 926   10 809 
 
The increase in the net amount appropriated to deliver outputs is mainly attributable to supplementary funding 
for the capital user charge and the administration of the public interest disclosure legislation (see supplementary 
funding below), and an increase in accommodation expenses from the previous year when the Office negotiated 
a six months rent free period. This explanation also contributes to the increase in the total cost of the output 
‘Performance Auditing’. 
 
A non-recurring severance payment and an increase in the Office leave provisions also contributed to the 
increase in the total cost of the output ‘Performance Auditing’. 
 

  
 iii) Significant variances between estimate and actual – Capital Contribution. 

 
Estimate   Actual 
 $’000   $’000 

Purchase of non-current physical assets           487     271 
 
There was no significant variation between the capital contribution, though actual capital expenditure was 
significantly lower than the estimate due to the deferral of the planned replacement of 50 per cent of the Office 
laptops to 2004-05 and the delayed availability of security software. 
 
 

  



AUDITOR GENERAL WA – ANNUAL REPORT 2003-04     77 

28 EXPLANATORY STATEMENT contd 
 
iv) Significant variances between actual and prior year actual – Capital Contribution. 
 

 2004   2003 
$’000   $’000 

Item 129 Capital Contribution      122        29 
Purchase of non-current physical assets        271      630 
 
The Capital Contribution increased from the prior year mainly attributable to proposed increases in computer 
expenditure for 2003-04. Draw downs from the Office’s Holding Account at Treasury were relatively consistent 
with the prior year.  
 
The decrease in purchases of assets from the prior year were mainly attributable to the capitalisation of the 
Office’s refurbishment in 2002-03 and the deferral of the Office laptop replacements to 2004-05.  
 

 v) Supplementary Funding. 
 
Supplementary funding approved and expended during 2003-04 was as follows: 
 
Amounts Authorised by Other Statutes – Financial Administration and Audit Act 1985 supplementary funding of 
$22 000 was received during the financial year in recognition of an increase in the salary of the Auditor General 
made by the Salaries and Allowances Tribunal. 
 
Supplementary funding of $90 000 was received during the financial year in relation to an increase in the 
Capital User Charge expense. This was fully expended. 
 
Supplementary funding of $82 000 was received during the financial year in relation to the administration of the 
Public Interest Disclosure legislation. This was fully expended. 
 

   
29 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS 
 

INTEREST RATE RISK EXPOSURE 

The Office’s exposure to interest rate risk is nil as the relevant financial instruments consisting of cash assets, 
accrued salaries suspense account, receivables, payables and accrued salaries are all non-interest bearing. 
 

 
 CREDIT RISK EXPOSURE 

All financial assets are unsecured. 

Amounts owing by other government agencies are guaranteed and therefore no credit risk exists in respect of 
those amounts. In respect of other financial assets the carrying amounts represent the Office’s maximum 
exposure to credit risk in relation to those assets. 

The following is an analysis of amounts owing by other government agencies: 
 

2 004 2003  
$'000  $'000  

Western Australian Government agencies  93  292
Government agencies of other jurisdictions  0  0
Total  93  292  
 

 NET FAIR VALUES 
 
The carrying amount of financial assets and financial liabilities recorded in the financial statements are not 
materially different from their net fair values, determined in accordance with the accounting policies disclosed in 
Note 2 to the financial statements. 
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30 SUPPLEMENTARY FINANCIAL INFORMATION 
 

  
Write-Offs 

2 004 2003  
$'000  $'000  

During the financial year the following amounts were written 
off the Office's asset register under authority of:

The Accountable Officer  3  0
The Minister  0  0
Executive Council  0  0  

 
 
Losses Through Theft, Defaults And Other Causes 
 

2 004 2003  
$'000  $'000  

Losses of public moneys and public or other property
through theft or default  6  0
Amount Recovered  0  0  
 
 
Gifts of Public Property 
 

2 004 2003  
$'000  $'000  

Gifts of Public Property  0  0  
 

   
31 THE IMPACT OF ADOPTING INTERNATIONAL ACCOUNTING STANDARDS 

 
 The Office of the Auditor General is adopting international accounting standards in compliance with AASB 1 ‘First-

time Adoption of Australian Equivalents to International Financial Reporting Standards’ (IFRS). 
 
AASB 1 requires an opening balance sheet at July 1, 2004 and the restatement of the financial statements for the 
reporting period to June 30, 2005 on the IFRS basis. These financial statements will be presented as comparatives 
in the first annual financial report prepared on an IFRS basis for the period ending June 30, 2006. 
 
AASB 1047 ‘Disclosing the Impacts of Adopting Australian Equivalents to International Financial Reporting 
Standards’ requires financial reports for the periods ending on or after June 30, 2004 to disclose how the transition 
to Australian equivalents is being managed and the key differences in accounting policies that are expected to 
arise. 
 
The Office of the Auditor General has established a project team that has commenced: 
• training staff in the key requirements of the Australian equivalents to IFRS; 
• reviewing key differences in accounting policies, disclosures and presentation and the consequential impacts 

and risks to the agency; and 
• assessing potential changes to financial management information systems. 
 
The Office does not expect significant differences in accounting policies to arise from adopting the Australian 
equivalents to IFRS. 
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OFFICE OF THE AUDITOR GENERAL 

PERFORMANCE INDICATORS 

 

Performance Indicators Certification 

The attached performance indicators have been prepared and are reported as indicators of the performance of the Office of the 

Auditor General for the year ending June 30, 2004. 

I certify that the performance indicators are based on proper records, are relevant and appropriate for assisting users to assess 

the Office’s performance, and fairly represent the indicated performance of the Office. 

 

 

 

D D R PEARSON 

ACCOUNTABLE OFFICER 

August 25, 2004 
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OFFICE OF THE AUDITOR GENERAL 

PERFORMANCE INDICATORS 
 
 
 
Outcome: An informed Parliament on public sector accountability and performance. 
 
EFFECTIVENESS INDICATOR 

All Members of Parliament are surveyed annually to determine the extent to which the Office’s reports and services fulfill the 

needs of Parliament. Responses to specific questions relating to the achievement of the above outcome were sought by the 

Office and are reported as key effectiveness indicators below. 

 
KPI  01-02 02-03  03-04 Target 03-04 

Parliamentary Census % % % % 
The Office of the Auditor General is effective in 
achieving its desired outcome of informing Parliament 
on accountability and performance of the public 
sector. 

84 66 66 85 

Reports dealt with matters of significance to 
Parliament. 

92 83 76 85 

Services and reports of the Office of the Auditor 
General are useful to Parliament. 1 

94 76 83 802 

 
 

1. This question replaces a previous measure and involves a new rating scale and minor wording changes. Both the new and old 
versions of the question were included in the 2002 Parliamentary Census and results published in the 2002-03 Annual Report to 
enable a comparison of the new and old data series.   

2. The Target for the replacement question is unchanged from the target reported in the 2003-04 Budget papers for the previous 
question.   

 

 

Output 1: Performance Auditing 
 

EFFICIENCY INDICATOR 

The Office has a single Output - ‘Performance Auditing’, and efficiency indicators are formulated to measure the cost per 
quantity unit.  

 
 01-02 

Actual 
$ 

02-03 
Actual 

$ 

03-04 
Actual 

$ 

03-04 
Target 

$ 
Cost per Matters of 
Significance (MoS) 

Cost per MoS 42 818 28 712 35 571 40 360 

Cost per major audit 80 389 94 514 102 220 85 885 Average cost per Audit 
Opinions Cost per other audit 12 424 12 139 15 959 17 783 
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OFFICE OF THE AUDITOR GENERAL 

PERFORMANCE INDICATORS 

 

Explanatory Notes for Performance Indicators 

How were the performance indicators derived? 

The effectiveness indicators are measured via an annual census of all Members of Parliament administered by an independent 
consultant. Respondents are not identifiable when the results are presented.  

The 2004 Parliamentary Census was sent to all members of Parliament, with a request that the completed form be returned to 
the consultant by April 23, 2004. Fifty-six per cent of Members responded (compared to 67 per cent last year, and 58 per cent 
the year before).  

The three measures used as indicators show the extent to which Parliamentarians felt that: the Auditor General was achieving his 
desired outcome of informing Parliament on accountability and performance of the public sector, reports dealt with matters of 
significance, and services and reports were useful to Parliament. Responses were sought on a five point rating scale, with the 
measure shown being calculated as the number of responses with a rating of either four or five divided by the total number of 
responses to that question. Because of the relatively small number of responses, variations of less than 10 per cent should be 
treated with caution. 

Efficiency indicators are formulated to measure the cost per quantity unit. The total cost for 2003-04 is derived from the Office's 
Cost Allocations Model in the Financial Management Information System. Projects are costed by the Cost Allocations Model 
using labour hours and direct costs, and allocating indirect costs. Quantity measures used to calculate efficiency indicators are 
extracted from the Office’s Resource Management Information System and departmental files. 

Matters of Significance (MoS) are considered by the Office as being the key messages contained in reports submitted to 
Parliament. Key messages are defined as those issues a general parliamentary reader would take away from the report after the 
detail of specific findings and recommendations have receded into the background. While MoS are predominantly an indicator 
of Performance, and Control, Compliance and Accountability Examinations, they are included in all the Auditor General’s 
reports tabled in Parliament under Section 95 of the Financial Administration and Audit Act 1985. Draft MoS are subject to 
internal review and the final MoS are determined by the Auditor General and explicitly identified at the beginning of each 
chapter as a series of dot points.   

A single, overall ‘cost per audit’ would not be a particularly useful Efficiency Indicator because of the variation in the size and 
complexity in Office’s clients. Two average costs have therefore been calculated for: 

o major audits – the largest and/or more complex and sensitive audits undertaken each year. These agencies cover 
approximately 94 per cent of State assets. 

o other audits – the remaining smaller, less complex audits. 

A full list of Audit Clients is provided elsewhere in this Annual Report, with ‘major audits’ being separately identified. 

What are the variations from previous indicators? 

There are no significant variations between the 2002-03 indicators and those provided last year. 

Why are the indicators considered relevant to the outcome and output? 

The Office’s Outcome for 2003-04 is: An informed Parliament on public sector accountability and performance. 

Parliament is the Auditor General’s principal client and as such, the output is structured around the products and services that the 
Auditor General provides to Parliament which in turn contribute to the desired Outcome. Members’ satisfaction with the Auditor 
General’s reports, services and his contribution to the public sector directly measures the effectiveness of informing Parliament. 

Matters of Significance (MoS) are included in all reports tabled in Parliament under Section 95 of the Financial Administration 
and Audit Act 1985.  

The efficiency indicators incorporate the cost and quantity measures of the Office’s single output, and as such gauge the overall 
efficiency in achieving the desired outcome of an informed Parliament on public sector accountability and performance. 

Why they are key indicators of performance? 

The indicators chosen directly measure the Office’s effectiveness and efficiency in producing its output and meeting its outcome. 
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How can the indicators assist the reader to assess performance? 

The effectiveness indicators inform the reader how well the reports tabled in Parliament and other services contribute to improved 
public sector accountability and performance as perceived by the Auditor General’s principal major client, Parliament. Efficiency 
indicators gauge the unit cost of each output measure. Results are presented as simple percentages or ratios for easy 
comprehension. Results for both effectiveness and efficiency can be directly compared with performance from two previous years.  

It should be noted a proportion of the Matters of Significance, identified in performance examinations and controls, compliance 
and accountability reports tabled in Parliament during the financial year, result from work which occurred in the previous 
financial year.   

What major movements in the measurements occurred as a result of unusual events or circumstances? 

The variations from last year to this year for all three effectiveness measures were less than the 10 per cent guide to significance. 
However, all three measures from the 2003-04 Parliamentary Census remain significantly below the results for 2001-02, and the 
measure that the Office is effective in achieving its desired outcome is 22 per cent below the target for the second year in a row. 

The reasons for the movements are not immediately apparent and do not appear to relate to exceptional events. It is intended to 
undertake a series of face to face interviews with Members of Parliament to identify key issues affecting measured performance. 

The average cost per Matter of Significance (MoS) at $35 571 has risen $6 859 (23 per cent) from last years average cost per 
Matter of Significance ($28 712). However, last year’s figure was exceptionally low, primarily due to the larger number (120) of 
MoS identified. 
 
The average cost of MoS  is $4 789 (11.8 per cent) below the target for 2003-04.  The variance from target is due to the 
number of MoS identified in Reports to Parliament exceeding expectations (112 against a target of 100). Total expenditure on 
performance examinations and controls, compliance and accountability audits in 2003-04 was very close to the target (around 
one per cent below the projected figure). 
 
The average cost of minor audits increased around 31 per cent from last year, from $12 139 in 2002-03 to $15 959. The 
average cost of Major Audits increased around 19 per cent from $85 885 to $102 220. 
 
The increases in average costs since last year are the result of an organisational decision to shift to earlier reporting of financial 
opinions. This involved bringing forward the normal auditing schedule of office and the use of additional contractors. 2003-04 is 
a transitional year, compressing some expenditure that would normally fall across two reporting years.      
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
OFFICE OF THE AUDITOR GENERAL 
 
INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S OPINION 







The Auditor General is an appropriately qualified independent statutory officer appointed by the 

Governor under the Financial Administration and Audit Act 1985 (FAAA) and retains office until 

retirement, unless suspended by the Governor and removed from office by a resolution of both 

Houses of Parliament. He is also the Accountable Officer and Chief Executive Officer of the 

Office, a department of the public service of the State under the Public Sector Management Act 

1994. For the purpose of executive administration, the Office currently falls within the ministerial 

portfolio of the Treasurer.

As the Accountable Officer, the Auditor General must discharge responsibilities under the FAAA 

(as modified by Part II of Schedule 1A). As Chief Executive Officer, the Auditor General is also 

responsible for a range of staffing functions under the Public Sector Management Act 1994.

Accountability and Authority
Accountability within the public sector is traditionally established when Parliament confers 

responsibility on public sector agencies, subject to control of a Minister of the Crown, to account 

through that Minister for all that is done in the exercise of their authority, the manner in which it is 

done and the ends sought to be achieved.

The Auditor General’s responsibility, conferred by Parliament, is to audit and report upon the 

manner in which conferred responsibilities have been discharged by agencies. As such the Auditor 

General has a responsibility to the community generally and his role is superimposed on the 

accountability relationship between the responsible Minister and Parliament. The interrelationships 

can best be demonstrated diagrammatically by the below ‘accountability triangle’.

Thus the Auditor General can be seen as serving the public interest and an ‘ally of the people and 

Parliament’. He must act, and be seen to be acting, independently in carrying out all of his powers 

and duties. This independence is the foundation of the external audit function in the public sector 

context.

The Auditor General’s role is recognised under 

statute in his appointment by the Crown and 

by conferred authority to undertake audits in 

the manner he sees fit. In order therefore to 

properly discharge his responsibilities in terms of 

law, he must be free from pressure, influence or 

interference from any source that may erode such 

independence.

AUDITOR GENERAL
The
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Audits Under FAAA
Departments
Administration of the Joint House 

Committee
Administration of the Legislative Assembly
Administration of the Legislative Council
Commissioner for Equal Opportunity
*Department for Community Development
*Department for Culture and the Arts
*Department for Planning and 

Infrastructure 
*Department of Agriculture
*Department of Conservation and Land 

Management
*Department of Consumer and 

Employment Protection
*Department of Education and Training
Department of Education Services
*Department of Environmental Protection
*Department of Fisheries
*Department of Health
*Department of Housing and Works 
*Department of Indigenous Affairs
*Department of Industry and Resources 
*Department of Justice
*Department of Land Information
Department of Local Government and 

Regional Development
*Department of Racing, Gaming and 

Liquor
Department of Sport and Recreation
*Department of the Premier and Cabinet
Department of the Registrar, Western 

Australian Industrial Relations 
Commission

*Department of Treasury and Finance
Governor’s Establishment
Office of Energy
Office of the Director of Public 

Prosecutions
Office of the Information Commissioner
Office of the Inspector of Custodial 

Services 
Office of the Public Sector Standards 

Commissioner
Parliamentary Commissioner for 

Administrative Investigations
*Police Service

Royal Commission into whether there has 
been any Corrupt or Criminal Conduct 
by Western Australian Police Officers 

*Treasurer’s Annual Statements
Western Australian Electoral Commission

Statutory Authorities and 
Corporations
Agricultural Practices Board of Western 

Australia
Agricultural Produce Commission
Animal Resources Authority
Armadale Redevelopment Authority
Botanic Gardens and Parks Authority 
Building and Construction Industry 

Training Board
Bunbury Water Board
Busselton Water Board
*Central TAFE 
Central West TAFE
*Challenger TAFE 
Coal Industry Superannuation Board
*Commissioner of Main Roads
Construction Industry Long Service Leave 

Payments Board
Corruption and Crime Commission
Country High School Hostels Authority
Country Housing Authority
Curriculum Council
*Curtin University of Technology
C Y O’Connor College of TAFE
*Disability Services Commission
East Perth Redevelopment Authority
Economic Regulation Authority
*Edith Cowan University
*Fire and Emergency Services Authority of 

Western Australia 
Fire and Emergency Services 

Superannuation Board
Forest Products Commission 
Gaming and Wagering Commission of 

Western Australia
Gascoyne Development Commission
*Gold Corporation
Goldfields-Esperance Development 

Commission
Government Employees’ Housing 

Authority
*Government Employees Superannuation 

Board

Great Southern Development 
Commission

Great Southern TAFE
Hawthorn Hospital
Heritage Council of Western Australia
*Insurance Commission of Western 

Australia
Keep Australia Beautiful Council (WA)
Kimberley TAFE
Kimberley Development Commission
Landcare Trust
Law Reform Commission of Western 

Australia
Legal Aid Commission of Western 

Australia
Legal Contribution Trust
Legal Costs Committee
Local Health Authorities Analytical 

Committee
*Lotteries Commission
Metropolitan Cemeteries Board
Midland Redevelopment Authority 
Mid West Development Commission
Minerals and Energy Research Institute of 

Western Australia
*Murdoch University
Office of Health Review
Parliamentary Inspector of the Corruption 

and Crime Commission
Peel Development Commission
Peel Health Services
Perth International Centre for Application 

of Solar Energy
Perth Market Authority
Perth Theatre Trust
Pilbara Development Commission
Pilbara TAFE
Potato Marketing Corporation of Western 

Australia
Professional Standards Council
*Public Transport Authority of Western 

Australia
*Public Trustee
Quadriplegic Centre Board
*Racing and Wagering Western Australia
Racing Penalties Appeal Tribunal of 

Western Australia
Real Estate and Business Agents 

Supervisory Board

CLIENTS
Audit
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Recreation Camps and Reserve Board
*Rottnest Island Authority
Rural Business Development Corporation 
Screen West (Inc.)
Settlement Agents Supervisory Board
Small Business Development Corporation
South West Development Commission
South West Health Board
South West Regional College of TAFE
State Government Insurance Corporation
State Supply Commission
Subiaco Redevelopment Authority
Swan Bells Foundation Inc
Swan River Trust
*Swan TAFE
The Aboriginal Affairs Planning Authority
The Agriculture Protection Board of 

Western Australia
The Anzac Day Trust
The Board of the Art Gallery of Western 

Australia
The Burswood Park Board
The Coal Miners’ Welfare Board of 

Western Australia
The Eastern Goldfields Transport Board
The Library Board of Western Australia
*The Minister for Health in his capacity 

as the Deemed Board of Metropolitan 
Public Hospitals

The National Trust of Australia (WA)
The Potato Growing Industry Trust Fund 

Advisory Committee
The Poultry Industry Trust Fund Committee
The Queen Elizabeth II Medical Centre 

Trust
*The State Housing Commission
*The University of Western Australia
The Western Australian Centre for 

Pathology and Medical Research
The Western Australian Egg Marketing 

Board
The Western Australian Museum
Trustees of the Public Education 

Endowment
*WA Country Health Service
Water and Rivers Commission
West Coast TAFE
Western Australian Alcohol and Drug 

Authority

Western Australian Boxing Commission
Western Australian Building Management 

Authority
Western Australian Coastal Shipping 

Commission
Western Australian Gas Disputes 

Arbitrator 
Western Australian Greyhound Racing 

Association
Western Australian Health Promotion 

Foundation
Western Australian Institute of Sport
*Western Australian Land Authority
Western Australian Meat Industry Authority
*Western Australian Planning Commission
Western Australian Sports Centre Trust
*Western Australian Tourism Commission
*Western Australian Treasury Corporation
Wheatbelt Development Commission
*Workers Compensation and 

Rehabilitation Commission
Zoological Gardens Authority

Subsidiaries
Advanced Powder Technology Pty Ltd 
AgraCorp Pty Ltd
Curtin Consultancy Services Limited
ECU Resources for Learning Ltd
Fresh Western Pty Ltd
Homeswest Loan Scheme Trust
*Keystart Group
 - Keystart Bonds Limited
 - Keystart Housing Scheme Trust
 - Keystart Loans Limited
 - Keystart Support (Subsidiary) Pty Ltd
 - Keystart Support Pty Ltd
 - Keystart Support Trust
MS Biotechnology Pty Ltd
Murdoch Retirement Services Ltd
Paragen Pty Ltd
Tarolinta Pty Ltd
The University Company Pty Ltd
Uniservices Kalgoorlie Pty Ltd
WA Mint Pty Ltd
WANMTC Pty Ltd
Wind Energy Corporation Pty Ltd 

Request Audits
Aberdeen Unit Trust
Beverley Frail Aged Lodge Inc 
*Consolidated Financial Statements for 

the Government of Western Australia
Curtin University of Technology 

Superannuation Scheme
Foundation for Advanced Medical 

Research Inc
Friends of the KEMH Inc
Ngala Inc
Numbers Investments Pty Ltd 
SB Investment Trust
South West Cogeneration Joint Venture
Tertiary Institutions Service Centre (Inc)
The Director of Legal Aid and Others in 

Trust

Audits Under Other Legislation
Cemeteries
Albany Cemetery Board
Bunbury Cemetery Board
Chowerup Cemetery Board
Dwellingup Cemetery Board
Geraldton Cemetery Board
Kalgoorlie-Boulder Cemetery Board
South Caroling Cemetery Board
Upper Preston-Lowden Cemetery Board

Port Authorities
Albany Port Authority
Broome Port Authority 
Bunbury Port Authority
Dampier Port Authority
Esperance Port Authority
*Fremantle Port Authority
Geraldton Port Authority
Port Hedland Port Authority

Other Legislation
*Water Corporation
*Western Power Corporation

* Office of the Auditor General’s 
major audit clients

APPENDIX 2
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Corporate Executive
Provides strategic direction and formulates corporate policies

Reporting to Corporate Executive

Committee Purpose
Office Consultative 
Committee (OCC)

To facilitate the efficient and effective conduct 
of Office activities by enabling the views 
of employees to be taken into account in 
decision-making

Occupational Safety 
and Health Committee 
(OS&H)

Provides employees and visitors of the Office 
with a safe and healthy place of work as 
required under the Occupational Safety and 
Health Act 1984

Note:
During the year the former Assurance Services Committee (ASCOM), Performance 

Review Committee (PARCOM) and the Information Management Committee (IMC) 

and the Operational Policy and Standards Committee (OPSCOM) were wound up, 

the responsibilities of the first three being transferred to Division Heads and of the 

fourth to the OCC. In addition to OPSCOM the Joint Consultative and the Equal 

Employment Opportunity committees were also reconstituted into OCC.

The scope of the OCC includes:

� Joint Consultation – Major proposed changes in service provision, program, 

organisation structure or technology that are likely to have significant effects on 

employees. 

� Equal Employment Opportunity (EEO) – Develop an Equal Employment 

Opportunity Plan every two years and monitor and review the Plan on an 

ongoing basis; ensure that the principles of equal employment opportunity are 

manifested in all aspects of the working environment.

�
�

COMMITTEES
Offi ce

APPENDIX 3



AUDITOR GENERAL WA — ANNUAL REPORT 2003-04        89 

Statement of Compliance with Relevant

ENABLING LEGISLATION
The administration of the 
Office of the Auditor General 
is established under Part III of 
the Financial Administration and 
Audit Act 1985.

LEGISLATION ADMINISTERED
The Office does not administer 
legislation.

LEGISLATION IMPACTING ON 
OFFICE ACTIVITIES
In the performance of its 
functions the Office complies 
with the following relevant 
written laws:

� Financial Administration 
and Audit Act 1985 (FAAA), 
and Corporations (Western 
Australia) Act 1990 
(Corporations Law).

� Public Sector Management 
Act 1994, Salaries 
and Allowances Act 
1975, Public and Bank 
Holidays Act 1972, Equal 
Opportunity Act 1984, 
State Superannuation Act 
2000, Superannuation 
and Family Benefits Act 
1938, Occupational Safety 
and Health Act 1984, 
Workers’ Compensation 
and Rehabilitation Act 
1981, Minimum Conditions 
of Employment Act 1993 
and Industrial Relations Act 
1979 (Employment Acts).

� State Records Act 2000

� Corruption and Crime 
Commission Act 2003

� State Supply Commission 
Act 1991

� Disability Services Act 1993

� Electoral Act 1907

� Electronic Transactions Act 
2003

� Public Interest Disclosure 
Act 2003

The following written laws also 
impact on the Office’s activities:

� Constitution Act 1889 
and Constitution Acts 
Amendment Act 1899, 
Treasurer’s Advance 
Authorisation, Supply, Loan 
and Appropriation Acts and 
Financial Agreement Acts.

� Interpretation Act 1984, 
and written law affecting 
agencies and activities 
subject to audit by the 
Auditor General.

In the financial administration 
of the Office we have complied 
with the requirements of the 
FAAA and every other relevant 
written law, and exercised 
controls which provide 
reasonable assurance that 
the receipt and expenditure of 
moneys and the acquisition and 
disposal of public property and 
incurring of liabilities have been 
in accordance with legislative 
provisions.

At the date of signing we are 
not aware of any circumstances 
which would render the 
particulars included in this 
statement misleading or 
inaccurate.

D D R PEARSON
ACCOUNTABLE OFFICER

P WILKINS
PRINCIPAL 
ACCOUNTING OFFICER

August 25, 2004

COMPLIANCE WITH PUBLIC 
SECTOR MANAGEMENT ACT 
SECTION 31(1)
The Office assesses compliance 
issues in relation to the Code 
of Ethics and Code of Conduct 
through proactive management 
and ongoing monitoring. Active 
discussion with staff regarding 
the Office’s ethos and values 
is a formal component of 
the Work and Development 
Planning process and reinforces 
compliance with the Codes. 
When matters are raised 
concerning ethical issues, it 
is usually managed in-house, 
however on occasion’s 
advice and assistance is 
sought from an appropriate 
body. The Office is staffed by 
professional people who pride 
themselves in maintaining 
a well-earned reputation of 
trust and credibility. To ensure 
that staff are aware of their 
responsibilities each year they 
are required to sign a staff 
declaration stating that they 
will ‘undertake to comply with 
all the relevant OAG policies 
and legislation and the Code of 
Conduct.’
The Office’s Internal Auditor 
(who is an independent 
contractor) has reviewed Human 
Resource documentation in 
relation to compliance of Public 
Sector Standards in Human 
Resource management. This 
audit confirmed that procedures 
and documentation provide 
evidence of compliance with 
Human Resource Standards 
and the Office’s policies. 
The documentation that was 
reviewed provided adequate 
evidence of compliance 
with Office policies and HR 
standards. In addition, the 
reviews of selection reports 
carried out by the HR Manager 
provided additional assurance 
of compliance with policies and 
standards. 
The Office conducted 20 
recruitment processes in 
2003-2004. There was no 
breach claims lodged.

D D R PEARSON
AUDITOR GENERAL
August 25, 2004

COMPLIANCE WITH 
ELECTORAL ACT 1907 
SECTION 175ZE(1)
Any public agency required to 
publish an Annual Report under 
the FAAA or any other law is 
required under section 175ZE 
(1) to include a statement in the 
annual report setting out details 
of all expenditure in relation to:

� advertising agencies

� market research 
organisations

� polling organisations

� direct mail organisations

� media advertising 
organisations

detailing the amount of the 
expenditure and in relation 
to each class of expenditure 
constituted by subsection (1) the 
amount of the expenditure for 
the class, and the name of each 
person, agency or organisation 
to whom an amount was paid.

In compliance with the above, 
I submit the following details of 
advertising for job vacancies 
and the Parliamentary Survey:

� Total Expenditure 
  $35 288

� Advertising Agencies 
  $27 413

 �Marketforce $17 459

 �Department of the 
Premier and Cabinet
  $4 084

 �Spherion Recruitment 
Solutions $5 000

 �Institute of Chartered 
Accountants $100

 �CPA Australia $770

� Market Research
Organisations $7 875

 �Colmar Brunton
  $7 875

D D R PEARSON
ACCOUNTABLE OFFICER

August 25, 2004

APPENDIX 4

WRITTEN LAWS
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Accountability is traditionally 
established when Parliament 
confers responsibility on public 
sector agencies to account 
through a Minister of the 
Crown for all that is done in the 
exercise of their authority, the 
manner in which it is done and 
the ends sought to be achieved.

Accrual Accounting provides 
information on revenues earned 
and expenditure incurred 
in an accounting period 
irrespective of when actual cash 
transactions occur (ie. when 
money is received or paid). It 
also involves accounting for the 
portion of assets consumed and 
liabilities incurred during the 
period and provides a summary 
of the net worth of the entity 
at the end of the accounting 
period.

Attest Audit is work performed 
to enable an opinion to be 
expressed regarding a report 
about financial or performance 
matters prepared by the party 
who is accountable for the 
financial transactions or the 
performance summary.

Auditor General’s Report is 
the vehicle used to report to the 
Parliament the results of audits 
and examinations conducted 
under sections 79 and 80 of 
the Financial Administration and 
Audit Act 1985.

Controls, Compliance 
and Accountability 
Examinations (CCAs) focus 
on financial administration 
and management issues with 
the objective of identifying 
opportunities for improving 
agencies’ operational 
performance, accountability, use 
of resources and compliance 
with legislation.

Corporatised Entities 
operate under enabling 
legislation in a similar manner 
to companies under the 
Corporations Act 2001.

Department means a body 
established or deemed to have 
been established under the 
Public Sector Management Act 
1994.

Direct Reporting is an 
examination resulting in a 
written report being prepared 
where the party responsible 
for the matter examined has 

not been significantly involved 
in initiating or preparing the 
report.

Effectiveness Indicators are 
performance indicators that 
provide information on the 
extent to which government 
desired outcomes have been 
achieved through the funding 
and production of agreed 
outputs. 

Efficiency Indicators are 
performance indicators that 
relate outputs to the level of 
resource inputs required to 
produce them.

Entrance Interviews are 
formal meetings with senior 
management conducted during 
the audit planning phase to 
provide the opportunity to 
canvass with management 
issues of importance and 
to explore the proposed 
audit emphasis and areas of 
coverage.

Exit Interviews are 
formal meetings with 
senior management at the 
penultimate stage of audits 
and examinations to confirm 
understandings and to explain 
audit findings and conclusions.

Financial Statements are 
a presentation of financial 
information including 
accompanying notes derived 
from accounting records to 
communicate for a period of 
time an entity’s results of its 
operations and cash flows and 
at a point of time its financial 
position.

Follow-up Examination 
Performance Examinations 
are routinely followed up two 
to three years after tabling to 
review what has been done. 
A Follow-on Examination 
is a more extensive follow-up 
examination where a topic still 
has significant importance and 
relevance.

Interim Report is a report 
issued where the Auditor 
General is unable to issue 
an audit opinion within the 
predefined deadlines stipulated 
in the Financial Administration 
and Audit Act 1985.

Management Letter is a 
letter to senior management 
that conveys the significant audit 
findings and result of an audit.

Materiality is the magnitude 
of an omission or misstatement 
of accounting or performance 
information that, in the light of 
context or circumstances, makes 
it probable that the judgment 
of a reasonable person relying 
on the information would have 
been changed or influenced.

Matters of Significance are 
the ‘key messages’ in OAG 
reports. ‘Key messages’ are 
defined as the issues a general 
Parliamentary reader would take 
away from the report after the 
detail of specific findings and 
recommendations has receded 
into the background.

Outcomes are the events 
that have changed as a result 
of products or outputs. An 
outcome is the result, or impact, 
of an output.

Outputs are goods or services 
produced as a result of the 
expenditure of resources. 
Outputs are means by which 
outcomes are achieved.

Performance Auditing 
encompasses the range of 
audit and review activities 
from annual attest audit 
work on financial statements 
and performance indicators 
through to the preparation of 
direct reports on performance 
examinations.

Performance Examination 
(PE) is work performed in 
examining the accountability, 
efficiency and effectiveness 
of public sector agencies 
or specific areas within an 
agency or across a number of 
government agencies.

Performance Indicator (PI) 
is information about output 
performance or outcome 
achievement, usually expressed 
as a unit, index or ratio.

Performance Indicator 
Audit is work performed 
to enable an opinion to be 
expressed regarding written 
assertions about whether or 
not the indicators are relevant 
and appropriate having 
regard to their purpose and 

fairly represent indicated 
performance.

Qualified Audit Opinion is 
expressed when the audit results 
in a significant disagreement 
with management, a material 
conflict between applicable 
financial reporting frameworks 
or an unavoidable limitation on 
audit work.

Significance is the 
relative importance in the 
circumstances, in relation to 
audit objectives, of an item, 
event or information, or 
problem the auditor identifies.

Statutory Authority means 
a person or body specified in 
Schedule 1 of the Financial 
Administration and Audit Act 
1985. These agencies are 
established by Parliament 
under legislation for specified 
purposes.

Treasurer’s Annual 
Statements report the 
transactions and balances of 
the Consolidated Fund, the 
Treasurer’s Advance Account 
and the Trust Fund on a 
predominantly cash accounting 
basis in accordance with the 
Financial Administration and 
Audit Act 1985.

Treasurer’s Instructions are 
prescribed requirements at a 
minimum level with respect to 
financial administration that 
have the force of law and must 
be observed by public sector 
agencies under the Financial 
Administration and Audit Act 
1985.

Unqualified Audit Opinion 
is expressed when the audit 
concludes that in all material 
respects the financial statements 
and performance indicators are 
presented fairly in accordance 
with the enabling legislation 
of the agency, applicable 
Accounting Standards, 
Treasurer’s Instructions and 
other mandatory professional 
reporting requirements in 
Australia.

Working Papers are 
documents that record the 
auditor’s planning, audit 
procedures performed, the 
auditor’s findings and the 
conclusions drawn from the 
audit evidence obtained.

TERMS
Glossary of 
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AUDITOR GENERAL’S OFFICE

Des Pearson 9222 7501
Auditor General

Peta Mullane 9222 7502
Executive Officer

ASSURANCE SERVICE DIVISION

Stephen Howell 9222 7507
Executive Director

Molly Elympos 9222 7506
Executive Support Officer

Don Cunninghame 9222 7526
Associate Director

Ian Goldsmith 9222 7559
Associate Director

Annette Keller 9222 7562
Associate Director

Stella Rapanaro 9222 7590
Associate Director

COMPLIANCE AND I S AUDITS DIVISION

Glen Clarke 9222 7543
Acting Executive Director

Colin Campbell 9222 3937
Principal Performance Analyst, Compliance Audit

Steve Mackessy 9222 7554
Manager, Information Systems

PERFORMANCE REVIEW DIVISION

Graham Baker 9222 7532
Executive Director

Neil Brown 9222 7551
Director

Peter McCann 9222 7545
Associate Director

STANDARDS AND QUALITY DIVISION

Paul Jost 9222 7514
Acting Executive Director

Barry Rowe 9222 7503
Associate Director Standards

Rod Berg 9222 7591
Coordinator Performance Indicators

BUSINESS AND STRATEGIC SERVICES DIVISION

Peter Wilkins 9222 7588
Acting Executive Director

Thelma Fermo 9222 7504
Personal Assistant

Peter Villiers 9222 7558
Manager, Communications

Pam Aaronson 9222 7553
Manager, Human Resources

Vince Partridge 9222 7508
Manager, Information Resources

Les Johnstone  9222 3919
Acting Manager, Finance and Administrative 
Resources

DIRECTORY
Offi ce
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